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BV USION

To be a world-class electro-acoustic group.

® Mission

Through continuous improvements in quality® and technology® and
raising the satisfaction level of employees, customers, suppliers and
investors, we enable sustainable growth of the group.

Unity and Co-operation; endeavoring joint efforts and wisdom for
achieving our goals.

Commitment and Mutual Benefits; making continuous and steady
development.

Innovation and Progress; sharing the outstanding achievements.

From Society and for Society; fulfilling social obligations.

Remark

@® Quality - Product, Service and Management; and
®@ Technology - Development and Production
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 March & =3 A31H I FE

2010 2009 Change 21t
Operating Results REEE
Gross margin (%) EME(%) 20.1% 202%  -0.1% pts BH 2
Operating margin (%) A8 R 2 (%) 6.8% 8.7% -1.9%pts &5 2
Net margin (%) A % (%) 5.6% 7.2% -1.6%pts &5 2
Return on equity holders (%) & & Bl (%) 7.0% 12.7% -5.7%pts B 2
Financial Position B A AR R
Total assets (HK$'000) BEE(TAT) 995,794 956,880 4.1%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) & RR1TF7K(FHETL) 392,217 415,846 -5.7%
Total bank borrowings (HK$'000)  A&SR{T{E R (FHT) 26,107 16,988 53.7%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MR (T ) 728,190 718,699 1.3%
Financial Ratio B i b 3
Current ratio (times) e (f5) 3.4 3.7 -8.1%
Quick ratio (times) REPLLE(fF) 3.0 3.2 -6.3%
Gearing ratio (%) B (&L & (%) 3.6% 2.4% 1.2%pts B9 &
Turnover Ratio B =
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(R) 52 48 8.3%
Debtors turnover (days) W BRBE (H ) 66 52 26.9%
Creditors turnover (days) FERTERBE(H) 39 36 8.3%
Operating cycle (days) fREEE(R) 79 64 23.4%
Dividends per Share (HK cents) #&REKE (E1l) 12.0 15.0 -20.0%
Interim ] 3.0 3.0 0.0%
Final R 5.0 5.0 0.0%
Special il 4.0 7.0 -42.9%
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Financial Summary

B 5 e

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHREHBPIN - ABEFHE)

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial

ErEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#

ATRELISEEZRAERAA(TARR D RE
MEARZEAEZEREREGEMBMRRKRZ

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries: wmE
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income FmETEREX

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FE T FIi Fi FiT
Revenue WA 913,229 1,264,996 1,616,485 1,678,402 1,089,209
Cost of sales HEK A (729,664) (1,009,398) (1,250,782) (1,297,880) (837,930)
Gross profit E7 183,565 255,598 365,703 380,522 251,279

Other gains/(losses) — net Hib iz,
(B1R) — %58 74 10,664 (21,346) 1,962 585
Distribution and selling expenses R HE X (19,046)  (19,205)  (26,096)  (27,418)  (32,868)
General and administrative expenses —#& M 1T X H (102,753) (137,413) (148,018) (143,252) (111,514)
Operating profit K=kl 61,840 109,644 170,243 211,814 107,482
Finance income R E WA 1,481 7,710 8,693 3,133 2,089
Finance costs BB KA (1,067) (3,440) (3,050) (5,975) (2,538)
Profit before income tax B P45 750 A& 7 62,254 113,914 175,886 208,972 107,033
Income tax expenses FriS i it (7,260)  (15,773)  (24,593)  (33,620)  (14,545)
Profit for the year RE A 54,994 98,141 151,293 175,352 92,488

Attributable to: BB

Equity holders of the Company RATIREREE A 51,142 91,296 138,226 159,487 85,760
Minority interests LHRRER 3,852 6,845 13,067 15,865 6,728
54,994 98,141 151,293 175,352 92,488
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHBE - BB E)
Consolidated statement of financial position mEMBERRE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Tt FT Tt T Tt
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEB 193,202 201,817 214,607 224,665 204,116
Investment properties wEYE 1,600 4,440 5,220 4,360 4,180
Leasehold land and land HEL&
use rights = $h {6 FA 4 33,779 35,638 21,527 21,198 21,156
Non-current deposits ERBZRE - - 14,627 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets A E S EE 7,513 2,480 - 3,963 7,215
Deferred income tax assets REFTSTREE - - 17 186 17
Total non-current assets FRBAERE 236,094 244375 255,998 254372 236,684
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 104,978 104,376 163,838 221,205 211,399
Trade receivables FEUE R 163,723 165,666 196,512 258,868 206,381
Other receivables H b e U R E 24,006 17,070 29,447 34,461 24,270
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 171 880 - - 495
Other financial assets at BAFER AER
fair value through profit or loss B E A BT 75 & B 73,885 8,667 45,369 7,238 9,370
Current income tax recoverable A EE HmEE 720 - - - -
Fixed deposits/pledged bank EHTF R AR
deposits RITER 6,810 - - 2,132 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 385,407 415,846 325,593 158,310 65,354
Total current assets nEAERE 159,7001 712,505 760,759 682,214 517,269
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables ERER 96,786 60,103 139,936 185,280 193,165
Accruals and other payables FEFrEA K
H b FE S F0E 80,872 98,098 106,406 99,803 67,840
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHAE 16,776 16,646 22,979 30,776 10,148
Derivative financial instruments TESMIT A - - 4,041 1,055 -
Bank borrowings RITHE R 26,107 16,988 30,416 43,279 51,053
Total current liabilities 8 B 48 220541 191,835 303778 360,193 322,206
Net current assets MEEEFE 939,159 520,670 456,981 322,021 195,063
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDER 775,253 765,045 712,979 576,393 431,747




ETEEEERARLT  2009/2010 Fik
Financial Summary
W B R
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEHES - OBEEHE)
Consolidated statement of financial position (continued) #RE B AR TR (&)
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T+ S T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITHE R - - 3,185 5,915 10,245
Deferred income PRFEUA 1,986 - - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFEREE 1,132 1,892 1,135 1,021 1,270
Total non-current liabilities EREBABERE 3,118 1,892 . 4320 6,936 11,515
Net assets EEFE 772,135 763,153 708,659 569,457 420,232
Equity M
Capital and reserves attributable to 538 2N 2 A i &
the Company's equity holders A AZRAE
R &
Share capital N 40,639 39,919 38,119 37,732 37,502
Other reserves Hoqth & 186,060 177,376 128,334 74,209 67,847
Retained earnings IR B8 A
- Proposed dividends —EERE 32,803 35,927 39,918 34,121 18,786
- Others —HAh 468,688 465,477 462,131 390,068 276,034
728,190 718,699 668,502 536,130 400,169
Minority interests D ER R 43,945 44,454 40,157 33,327 20,063
Total equity e Et 772,135 763,153 708,659 569,457 420,232
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The Board of Directors has recommended payment
of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share and a

special final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share.

K 2 R E R B ARG 078 Il K

Xﬁﬂﬂiﬂ_\tﬂx\% 078 Il

Johnny Yeung & & i#
Chairman % J&

To our shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present to you the
annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the

March 2010.

“Group”) for the year ended 31

During the year under review, the Group continued to persevere through
the doldrums created by the economic downturn. With consumer confidence
remaining shaky, particularly in North America, overall demand for our
products was weak. Nevertheless, our ability to deliver popular high fidelity
products, including stylish headphones, was evident with significantly
increased orders from world-class customers.

With effective cost control measures in place, we were also able to keep
gross margin at above 20% — an encouraging result when compared
with our peers, especially since production costs were on an uptrend.
This underscored our commitment to and success in maintaining sound
financial performance.

In the belief that the worst is now behind us, we remain sanguine about
the Group's prospects in the upcoming financial period. Grounds for
optimism include our ability to tap the mass market, achieving strong
performance in both the audio and multimedia business thanks to our

HEMLRR

AANBREEZTS([ESC)REEITEEE
BERAR(TARR D EEMBAR(TELE I
[REE EZE2010F3831BIEFE 22 FE£E

HE -

REBEFA AEEEEECERRMBROE
BEPRABRE - HEEELNATE  BRAKIL
ILE BRHAMEMNEBRBTIRKS - EEW
- KB MR mEE P HETEREE N Z-E"
BRTRMPBENELERBONEBEER &
e E B o

IBAEA MH B AR B FE I - R TEE R EN K 4
FE20%A L MELEEXRABIANBERT @ HE
EWFRGEML A BRIIEE - SHRERMER
FREMBRRTEAENS D EKI -

HMEE ZENBERECKBE  TAEAEE
T AR R R NEE o HFIRELE
B REARRMAERKRRTSHED - LA
EHLAFEENBEERMMESD  SHRMARE



Chairman'’s Statement

S

ability to deliver creative and quality acoustic products. In addition, our
dedication to exploring fresh opportunities has been rewarded with the
securing of several new customers who hold international presence.

As we seek to attract even more new customers, as well as retain those
presently in our portfolio, we must redouble efforts on research and
development (R&D). Enriching our talent pool and allocating resources to
maintain state-of-the-art equipment and facilities ensure that we are able
to provide tailored solutions and promote co-development arrangements
as well as augment our own product line-up. Past experience has shown
that our technical prowess is the key to attracting and retaining customers.
We will therefore continue honing our R&D expertise in order to open
still more doors as well as prove our mettle as a trustworthy original
design manufacturer.

“When the going gets tough, the tough get going” is a saying that seems
most appropriate for these current times. Though conditions are presently
tough, we have the determination to do what is necessary, including
strengthening our competitive advantages by investing in R&D, tightening
ties with existing first-tier customers, pursuing new partnerships and
employing stringent cost control measures, to get the Group prepared
for rapid recovery in the future.

Dividends

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK 3.0
cents per ordinary share, which combined with an interim dividend of
HK3.0 cents and a special interim dividend of HK1.0 cent paid earlier,
represents an annual payout of HK12.0 cents per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend my gratitude
to our business partners, customers and stakeholders for their unwavering
support. The management team and staff must also be lauded for their
diligence and perseverance. Everyone at the Group remains resolute in
bolstering the performance of our business units in the coming year, and
delivering favourable returns to shareholders.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The lingering effects of the global financial crisis continued to influence
consumption sentiment worldwide, consequently hampering the Group’s
growth. For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group generated total
revenue of HK$913.2 million, representing a decline of 27.8% over last
year (2009: HK$1,265.0 million). Gross profit contracted by 28.2% year on
year to HK$183.6 million (2009: HK$255.6 million). Profit attributable to
equity holders fell by 44.0% to HK$51.1 million (2009: HK$91.3 million).
Even though material and labour costs continued to rise during the year,
gross margin stood above 20% thanks to the use of effective cost control
measures and by exploiting the advantages of vertical integration.

EHDRE

EHeRARSEYESTRBEERN  EME
RAEEZIER - HE2010F3831HIEFE - K
EE AR A £913,200,000 7T © BREFFH27.8%
(2009 : 1,265,000,0007% 7T) ° EFIF T #£28.2%
Z%183,600,0005% 7T (2009 : 255,600,000/ T ) » A%
A ANTERE A T [£44.0% 251,100,000 7T
(2009 : 91,300,000 7T) ° A A BRI AN 12
GIREREERAEBNED  BEFAMEK
TR ET B3Rk - BRI ERDUERFE20% L o
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B g W &

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Core Businesses — Headsets and Headphones

Remaining the key constituent of the Group's operation, this area of business
accounted for 65.3% (2009: 69.1%) of overall revenue. During the year
under review, revenue was recorded at HK$596.7 million, representing a
year-on-year decline of 31.8% (2009: HK$874.3 million). Principal cause
of the decline was the drop in demand for headsets and headphones in
North America due to the slow economic recovery, which is a market that
a number of the Group’s main customers are dependant on. As well, the
poor conditions prompted postponement of product launches from a leading

European mobile phone manufacturer. Compounding matters, demand for
mobile phones was sluggish in Europe, thus directly affecting the Group's
income from the two regions. Also, the Group's strategic decision to stop
supplying headsets for Microsoft's Xbox 360™ game console in order to
maintain profitability naturally reduced income, thereby exaggerating the
drop in total revenue during the year under review.

EISEXEERERAR  2009/2010 F3k
%ﬁ%/'\u '\*ﬁ
BOEB -BRERRZTEER

EEBEBARASEEEBEMNEEHS  HRBIK
AH65.3% (2009 : 69.1%) » BEEF RN FrEk5H
W A %596,700,00078 7T + #HF T [431.8% (2009 :
874,300,000/ T) c EBMA TR ZEZRRA - &
AR EEEREE  IEHHBKEERESET#

ZERTRE MIEXDAEEETEZEFERBE LT
5o R PENTEH-FZEMERAHEFR

EEREEELER ZERAT  BUNH KEE
FHRRES - BtEEZEXRER G M ED
BREZ A o SN - REEABRFER AL DR
S 1R TEF LE HEE R Xbox 360™% BBl E H
Bt — REORFE G B AR D - BN B
FRNBRA -
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BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS (Continued)

Core Businesses — Headsets and Headphones (Continued)

The decline in revenue was minimised, however, due to the Group’s strong
relationship with other world-class customers. Apart from maintaining
tight partnerships with European and Japanese professional audio brands
underscoring its prowess in the audio and multimedia segments, the
Group received increased orders from other customers in both areas of
activity, thus further bolstering its share of the mass market. Likewise, its
strength in developing and launching trendy headphones was rewarded
with a jump in demand.

Non-core Businesses — Accessories and Components

Representing an important part of vertical integration efforts, this area
of business achieved modest growth in overall revenue contributions to
the Group, recorded at 34.7% (2009: 30.9%), though revenue for the
year experienced a 19.0% decline to HK$316.5 million (2009: HK$390.7
million). The diminished performance was anticipated given that the Group’s
core businesses experienced a general decline in demand due to sluggish
economic conditions. Contributions from external sales of accessories and
components remained stable as substantiated by a relatively moderate
drop in revenue when compared with the Group’s core businesses.

10
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SEERBIRAT  2009/2010 F3;

i

PROSPECTS

Despite continuing to experience the effects of a weakened world economy,
the management believes that the trough has been reached and countries
which have implemented effective stimulus measures are now beginning
to reap the benefits, leading to better prospects for the Group in the
future. Already, there have been increased orders received from existing
business partners while new and potential customers are in discussions
with the Group.

The Group's association with leading European and Japanese brands has
allowed it to directly benefit from their strong demand for sophisticated
acoustic products, registering a rise in orders and involvement in more
research and development (R&D) projects. The Group anticipates still
greater contributions from such ties as consumer confidence strengthens
and owing to higher margin commanded for products in this premium
category.

Not neglecting to build on its strong presence in the mass market, the
Group will further address demand by delivering new products for the
audio and multimedia segments. In addition to developing and launching
trendy products on a timely basis, seeking out new customers and utilising
comprehensive retail sales channels to distribute goods will all be part
of the Group's strategy for capturing a greater share of this important
market segment.

RE
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group will continue looking for opportunities to secure business from
communications brands as well. To nurture existing relationships while
attracting new ones, the Group will utilise its R&D prowess to cater for
clients’ needs. Moreover, the Group's manufacturing capabilities and
one-stop-shop services also represent valuable attributes that can draw
potential clients’ attention and stir their interest in forming business
partnerships with the Group.

As the Group strengthens all areas of its business, R&D competence will
be paramount. To build on this expertise, the Group will hire individuals
with the appropriate skills set so that the R&D team is fully capable of
providing tailored solutions, promote co-development arrangements as well
as expand the Group’s own product portfolio. In addition, the management
will dedicate substantial effort towards employing cost down measures
which are deemed essential for maintaining gross margin at a healthy
level. Through all of these endeavours, the management is confident that
the Group will realise long-term healthy growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2010 amounted to approximately HK$539.2 million
(2009: HK$520.7 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were
approximately 3.4 times (2009: 3.7 times) and 3.0 times (2009: 3.2 times),
respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits of approximately
HK$392.2 million as at 31 March 2010, representing a slight decrease
of approximately 5.7% against approximately HK$415.8 million as at 31
March 2009. Approximately 70.1%, 19.0% and 9.6% of the total cash
and cash equivalents and fixed deposits were denominated in US dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, respectively and the remainder in other
currencies. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had aggregated banking
facilities of approximately HK$264.3 million (2009: HK$270.9 million) from
several banks for loans and trade financing, with an unused balance of
approximately HK$238.2 million (2009: HK$253.9 million).

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2010, the total bank borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$26.1 million (2009: HK$17.0 million), which were
secured short-term bank loans, denominated in Renminbi and due within
one year.

12
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital Structure (Continued)

Approximately HK$42.4 million of certain properties and land use rights
have been pledged for several secured short-term bank loans (2009:
HK$43.5 million). The Group's bank borrowings bear interest rate at 5.3%
(2009: 5.3%) per annum.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 March 2010 was approximately 3.6%
(2009: 2.4%), which was measured on the basis of the total bank borrowings
as a percentage of total equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. If the balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2010
was taken into account, the Group was in a net cash position.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China with most
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2010, the Group employed a total of approximately 5,500
(2009: over 6,000) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$200.2 million (2009:
HK$263.5 million).

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees
in Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in
Mainland China. The Group has also developed training programs to its
management and employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2009: HK$198.0 million) to several banks
to secure banking facilities of its subsidiaries. The facilities utilised by
the subsidiary as at 31 March 2010 were approximately HK$26.1 million
(2009: HK$17.0 million).
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Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, aged 65, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr. Yeung
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and implementation
of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected the Honorary
Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries and Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He has over 40 years of experience in
the electronics and acoustics industry. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Vice
President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
President of The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries,
the Council Member of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency Governing
Council, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industries Association
and the Honorary Chairman & the Vice Chairman of Dongguan Electronics
Industries Association, the President of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry
& Commerce Association. Mr. Yeung is the father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung,
Ben, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 68, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.
Mr. Yuen has over 40 years of experience in the electronics industry and
has in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is a Vice
Chairman of the Fifth Committee of the Association of Foreign Investment
Enterprises of Dongguan City, Honorary Citizen of Dongguan City and
Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 61, is a co-founder of the Group.
He has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director of
the Group since 2000. Mr. Chow is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of purchasing related affairs of the Group. He was elected the
Associateship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong
Industries. Mr. Chow has over 40 years of experience in the electronics
and acoustics industry, especially in production and material management
and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai Fung, the
executive Director of the Company.
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Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 35, is an executive Director. Mr. Yuen
joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. He graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor
degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States of
America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and
was responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services.
Mr. Yuen has more than seven years of experience in financial securities
industry and he is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yuen was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the remuneration committee of Pak Tak International Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
September 2009. Mr. Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint
Deputy Chairman of the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 34, is an executive Director. In
November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon Industrial Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, in which he served in numerous sales and marketing and
project management positions for about three years. Mr. Yeung re-joined
the Group as an executive Director in August 2007 and is responsible for
overseeing the business development functions of the Group. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Yale University in the
United States of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International
Business from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr.
Yeung has more than ten years of working experience in an engineering
and marketing capacity. In addition, Mr. Yeung is an ex-com member of
Group 5, General Committee of Electronic Products of Federation of Hong
Kong Industries (Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council), a member of
Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (Hong
Kong), a member (Youth Officer) of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry &
Commerce Association and a current advisor of 2010/2011 the 43rd Yan
Chai Hospital Board Office. Mr. Yeung is the son of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny, the Chairman of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 46, is an executive Director. Ms. Chow joined
the Group in March 2001 and was appointed an executive Director with
effect from 1 August 2007. She is responsible for the overall financial
management, accounting functions of the Group. Ms. Chow was also
appointed to be a Company Secretary and a Qualified Accountant of the
Group in October 2007 and April 2008; respectively. She graduated from
the University of Missouri-Kansas City, United States of America with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. Ms. Chow has over 10 years of
experience in management, accounting and finance. She is a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chow is the sister of Mr.
Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Dr. CHANG Chu Cheng, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
Director since March 2000. Dr. Chang was a founder and the Chairman of
Varitronix International Limited for 29 years. He is presently the Chairman
of iView Limited. Dr. Chang remains as the Honorary Chairman of Varitronix
and serves as a Non-executive Director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited,
both of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange . He gained
his doctorate in Solid State Electronics from the University of Manchester
Institute of Science & Technology in 1969 and lectured in physics and
electronics at The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Chang is currently
the Honorary Advisor of Hong Kong Critical Components Manufacturers
Association and the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Photographic and
Optics Manufacturers Association.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 42, had been an independent non-
executive Director for four years since March 2000. On June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Che holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate
in laws from The University of Hong Kong. He was admitted as a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and has been a member of
The Law Society of Hong Kong since 1993. Mr. Che has been practicing
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for about 17 years and is a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 48, has been an independent non-executive
Director since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree
majoring in accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary,
Canada. He is currently a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee worked as the group financial
controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial
controller of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000,
and deputy finance director of Henderson China Holdings Limited from
2000 to 2001, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lee is currently the vice president of finance of a private group of
companies.

Senior Management

Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 70, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHENG Shek Ping, aged 64, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
International Limited. He joined the Group in June 1984.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 57, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. ZHU Jianhuan, aged 50, is the Managing Director of Zhejiang Fousine
Science & Technology Co. Ltd. He joined the Group in May 2000.
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Report of the Directors
3l

The directors (the "Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the audited financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment information
is set out in note 5 to the audited financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 37 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share and a special
interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share were paid during the
year. The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share which, subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”),
will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31 March 2010 to
approximately HK$48,771,000.

Other Reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 21 to the audited financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in notes 19 and 20, respectively, to the audited financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2010, the Company's reserves of approximately HK$138,800,000
(subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
and retained earnings of approximately HK$41,810,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
(the “Bye-Laws"”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$310,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 6 to the audited financial statements.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note
17 to the audited financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 33 to the audited
financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chang Chu Cheng
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, Mr.
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben and Ms. Chow Lai Fung will retire from the office
of Directors by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting. All the other Directors will remain in office.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporations

As at 31 March 2010, the Directors and chief executive of the Company
had the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

a) Interests in the Company

BEERFETHAEREAQATRAEE
ERmZzRP - HERORES &
3¢
M2010F3A31H - HRBIBRBEFF NP EIXRGE
3EFTEEZE R MR AR R REBH
AERGMBERAR (BRI DIBE FTEITAE
BRITEFRH2RESFA(ZESFR ) A E A
FRENEGE  BEERAQRRETZTHRAERE
ARIREBE NG (TR ALESBERA([FFH
NEREEM ) EXVER) 2 B~ RN REHF
BEE T ERSKE

a) REARQRFzHEHR

Number of ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each (the “Shares"”)

Number of
underlying
shares

(in respect
of share
options) @

HERO#E

SREEIGETZEBR(RODHE (RBRERS)?

Interest of Approximate

Beneficial ~ Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of

Name of Directors interest of a trust corporations interest Total shareholding
B BHEER Eiks ZTEHZEES BEEER At BARRESL
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny & 10,111,000 - 211,714,500 3,700,000 225,525,500 55.49%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon JJ5 i £ 6,091,000 - 211,714,500 7,300,000 225,105,500 55.39%
Chow Man Yan, Michael AX{= 6,027,000 = 211,714,500 3,700,000 221,441,500 54.49%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman J7 & - - - 400,000 400,000 0.10%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben #5 B2 - 211,714,500 = - 211,714,500 52.10%
Chang Chu Cheng 3R A% 546,000 - - - 546,000 0.13%
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporations (Continued)

b)

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#

EEREETRAERAQCAHHEE
ERAzRG - HEROKRESF 2#

= (%)

Interests in the associated corporation — AcousticTouch b) RE & A 5 Z f# & — Acoustic Touch
Limited Limited
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares of percentage

Name of Directors Capacity US$1.00 each of shareholding
BRMEE1.00E T

EEpR 514 ZEREE BRERBE DL
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Interest of controlled corporation 15 33.33%
% i PRI A A E) A
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon Interest of controlled corporation 150 33.33%
R T AR 2R A R
Chow Man Yan, Michael Interest of controlled corporation 15 33.33%
Ehq e NS S

Notes: M 5

1. These Shares were held by Acoustic Touch Limited, which was owned 1. #% % M 17 B Acoustic Touch Limited## 48 » M &

as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Gentle Smile Development Limited, as to
15 shares (33.33%) by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, as to 5 shares
(11.11%) by Artbo Industries Group Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%)
by East Sino Consultants Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Loyal
Fair Group Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow
Man Yan, Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon. Each of East Sino Consultants Limited, Artbo
Industries Group Limited and Loyal Fair Group Limited was beneficially
owned by the Yeung Family Trust, which was a discretionary trust and
the objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Under the SFO, each of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai,
Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael was deemed to be interested
in all the Shares in which Acoustic Touch Limited was interested.

2. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option
schemes of the Company, details of which were separately disclosed
under the paragraph headed "Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as at 31 March 2010.

% Bl fiGentle Smile Development Limited# &
150% % 5 ( B133.33%) * Sky Talent Enterprises
Limited5 /5 155 % £ (BN33.33%) » LA K FaArtbo
Industries Group Limited - East Sino Consultants
Limited 5 Loyal Fair Group Limited % BlJ$ 55 5P% B
?(11.11%) °

Gentle Smile Development Limitedeh & 32 1= 5&
4+ 2B A - Sky Talent Enterprises Limitedf
JR T 4R Y £ 2 B ¥ A © East Sino Consultants
Limited * Artbo Industries Group Limited}zLoyal
Fair Group Limited¥3 8 & # 12 & & ©Yeung
Family Trust (L5255 AR5 50 R BV KIRAK B
(BEBIBEE))ERES -

RIS R BEEG - BEELE - RMmA
% A R B SO 5 A w48 B A Acoustic Touch
Limited T A 2RO HEBE R ©
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Information on Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares in the Company. Details of the schemes are set out in note 20
to the audited financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme”)
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and terminated the
share option scheme adopted on 23 March 2000 (the “Old Scheme”). The
options granted under the Old Scheme prior to its termination remain in
full force and effect.

On 7 August 2009, an ordinary resolution was passed for refreshing the
10% limit (the “10% Limit") under the Existing Scheme on the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to
be granted under all the share option schemes of the Company. Following
the refreshment of the 10% Limit, details of the Existing Scheme are as
follows:

1. Purpose of the Existing Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Existing Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest, and any other party having contribution to the development
of the Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Existing Scheme and percentage to the issued share
capital as at 31 March 2010

39,918,900 shares (approximately 9.8% of the total issued share
capital).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Existing Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.
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Information on Share Option Schemes (Continued)

5.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Existing Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the
date of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the
date of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the

highest of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

c. the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the Existing Scheme

The Existing Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 September 2002 (being the date of fulfilment of
all conditions on the adoption of the Existing Scheme).
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Directors’ Rights to acquire Shares or Debentures

As at 31 March 2010, movements in the share options granted to and
held by the Directors under the share option schemes of the Company
were as follows:

EEBAROIES 2 EF

R2010F3831H » IREAQAA ZBRESE - &R
FTUAREEFAZEREZSHNOT

Number of underlying Shares

HERGEA
Lapsed/ Sub-
Granted Exercised Cancelled scription
Beginning during during during End of price Date of
of the year the year the year the year the year per Share grant Exercise period (dd/mm/yyyy)
ERXM/ =13
£4 FREH ERfiR B £33 ABE BHAH TEEE(B/B/F)
"000F & "000F & '000F Bk "000F & '000F i HKS % 7T
0ld Scheme &3t &
Directors £%
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny #5% 3,600 - (3,600) - - 1.287  02/05/2000 02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon 51 4 3,600 - - - 3,600 1.287  02/05/2000 02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Chow Man Yan, Michael FX (= 3,600 - 3,600) - - 1287 02/05/2000 02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010
Total 425 : 10,800 - (7,200) - 3,600
Existing Scheme R&3 &
Directors £%
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15751 3,700 - - - 3,700 1,98 22/05/2007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note) (FizE)
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon 51 4 3,700 - - - 3,700 1.98 2210512007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note) (FitzE)
Chow Man Yan, Michael X 3,700 - - - 3,700 1.9 22/05/2007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note) (Ff3E)
Yuen Chi King, Wyman J&F &k 400 = - - 400 1.98 2210512007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 (Note) (FifzE)
Total £t - 11,500 - - - 11,500
Note: Bt -

The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements to enable any of
the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
transactions disclosed in note 35 to the audited financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

On 26 April 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with three directors
for the disposal of a group of subsidiaries. Details of such transaction
were set forth in the announcement of the Company dated 26 April 2010
and disclosed in note 10(c)(vii) to the audited financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company's issued shares at 31 March 2010 amounting to 5%
or more of the ordinary shares in issue which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#

FERRRAQ2ARDREBRD 2
B

MTAL(LEEARREETRFETHRAB)R
2010F3A31HEFBS% A FEBRITEBR 2K
MERARBEITRG Z2BERNDERIOXE
MmARIEE S RBAEEHEXVBE2REID M
ARABIEE WEEHAXRRGREEFESFLBPE
RBIZE336MFE 2 &M -

Approximate

Number percentage
Name of shareholder of Shares Capacity of interest
(Note 1)
RERER BHEE 5% #BAEZEIL
(BF&ET)

Acoustic Touch Limited 211,714,500 Beneficial owner 52.10%
BE=EA A

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 52.10%
2l Az (FTEE2)

Golden Hope Financial Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 52.10%
2l Az (FTEE2)

Gentle Smile Development Limited 211,714,500 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 52.10%
2l Az (FTEE2)

Silverfun Property Limited 211,714,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) (Note 2) 52.10%
ErEA (HBEEFEARSIN) (FEE2)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 225,525,500 Interest of spouse (Note 3) 55.49%
BB HZ T B (8 2 #Ea (FI5E3)

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 225,105,500 Interest of spouse (Note 4) 55.39%
RiREL T B (8 2 = (FiE4)

Ms. Cai Liting 221,441,500 Interest of spouse (Note 5) 54.49%
ZBIE T+ Bt (8 2 #E 7= (FI 5E5)

DJE Investment S.A. 31,932,000 Investment Manager 7.86%
TEKE

Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG 31,932,000 Investment Manager (Note 6) 7.86%
B 53R (fI5E6)

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt 31,932,000 Investment Manager (Note 6) 7.86%
B 53R (fI5E6)

David Michael Webb 4,829,000 Beneficial owner 1.19%
EaBEAA

23,955,000 Interest of controlled corporation (Note 7) 5.89%
ZHIN A 2w (M EET)

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 23,955,000 Beneficial owner (Note 7) 5.89%
Emma AFEE7)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Interests in Shares and underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

2. Acoustic Touch Limited was owned as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Gentle Smile
Development Limited, as to 15 shares (33.33%) by Sky Talent Enterprises
Limited, as to 5 shares (11.11%) by Artbo Industries Group Limited, as to 5
shares (11.11%) by East Sino Consultants Limited and as to 5 shares (11.11%)
by Loyal Fair Group Limited.

Gentle Smile Development Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael. Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee
Sai, Simon. Each of East Sino Consultants Limited, Artbo Industries Group
Limited and Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property
Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited.
Silverfun Property Limited was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was
then beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and
the objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

3. Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.
4. Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.
5. Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

6. DJE Investment S.A. held 31,932,000 Shares. DJE Investment S.A. was owned
as to approximately 81.0% by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was in
turn owned as to approximately 68.5% by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt.

7.  These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael
Webb had an aggregate interest in 28,784,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO as at 31 March 2010.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 38% of the Group's total revenue and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 29% of the Group's total
purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for approximately
11% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors, their associates,
or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the Company had an interest
in these five largest customers and/or these five largest suppliers.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain continuing related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to
the audited financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules, and are required to
be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a new master purchase agreement
and a new master supply agreement with The Bright Printing Press and
Paper Products Limited (“Bright Printing”) for a term of three years from
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2012, following the expiration of the master
purchase agreement and master supply agreement dated 26 January 2006.
Pursuant to the master purchase agreement, Bright Printing agreed to sell,
and the Company agreed to purchase, certain printing products during
the term of the agreement. Pursuant to the master supply agreement,
the Group agreed to sell, and Bright Printing agreed to purchase, certain
printed PVC sheets/boxes and certain packaging materials during the term
of the agreement. Details of such new master purchase agreement and
new master supply agreement were set forth in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 March 2009.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

During the year, the Group has purchased paper-related products from
and sold printed PVC sheets/boxes to Bright Printing, amounting to
approximately HK$2,308,000 and HK$971,000, respectively. All these
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company according to the terms set out in the relevant
master agreements governing them. These transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason
that Bright Printing is ultimately owned as to an aggregate of 97% by Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, and Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael, all being Directors of the Company. Regarding the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that all such transactions have
been entered into:

a. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

b. on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

c. in accordance with the relevant master agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transaction on a sample
basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400
"Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial
Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor have reported their factual findings on the selected
samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board of Directors.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which needs to be disclosed in accordance with the
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2010

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#

B BLEm

MBREREABEBKESTMEBAESL - W
EREEH ETAERTBERERBEAE
LEE -

REEFS

0 2010668240

29



Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2009/2010

Corporate Governance Report
(e SRR h

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices” (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the "Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
The terms of references were prepared in accordance with the Code
Provisions. The Board has also set up an internal audit team to monitor
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group. Throughout the
year, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions, save for the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report of the
Company, the Board has not appointed any individual to the post of chief
executive officer. The responsibilities of the chief executive officer have
been performed collectively by all the executive Directors, including the
chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement is
proper and beneficial to the Group as the stability and efficiency of the
Company's operations, as well as the continuity of the Company’s policies
and strategies, can be maintained. Going forward, the Board will periodically
review the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an
individual as the chief executive officer when it thinks appropriate.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior
management of the Group have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and senior management throughout
the year ended 31 March 2010.

Board of Directors

At the date of this annual report, the Board is composed of six executive
Directors comprising Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny as the chairman, Mr.
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael as the joint deputy
chairmen, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben and Ms
Chow Lai Fung; and three independent non-executive Directors comprising
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng, Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies, the
setting of appropriate strategic policies and internal control, and the
oversight of the operation and financial performance of the Group. Each
year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies
of the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy and
other major corporate activities. For such purposes, the Board held four
meetings during the year, with an average attendance rate of approximately
94%.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, are responsible
for execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and oversight
of the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held four meetings during the year and the average attendance
rate was approximately 94%. Details of the attendance of each of the
Directors at board meetings and committee meetings held for the year
ended 31 March 2010 are set out in the table below:

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#

EEg(4H)
EEAANTOERRE ATV ABERBMEERE
RREEE URERAEEZL2ERMBR

B -EESEFFRECECTEEREASE Y
BERE FTEBE UE®REK REBKXRERHE
MEBCEIH FESHRFRF LM B WRT
mRkEs - FHHFEELNEI% -

INE R

AEEEREXEFTERHK AENTERMRZ
EBRE BREENABEZERRRERE R
BF URERAKERXRBZATERE -

EEgRZEECHERR
FREFCRINAEGE  FHHEEXRLH A% -
REE2010F3931BIHFE SEEHFESS
ERREEECHRIHBEHINTE

No. of meetings attended/held

HEBITEERH

Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
=2 g EREEE TMZEES
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15 S 414 - -
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon TR i 28 4/4 - -
Chow Man Yan, Michael AxX{= 4/4 = _
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TR AR 3/4 - 11
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 1518 414 - -
Chow Lai Fung EER 4/4 - -
Independent Non-executive BIUFHITES

Directors

Chang Chu Cheng aR A8 K 414 212 11
Che Wai Hang, Allen BHEE 3/4 22 11
Lee Yiu Pun 2 R 414 212 111
Average attendance rate G 94% 100% 100%
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not set up a nomination committee and is responsible for
the nomination of new directors. It reviews regularly the need to appoint
additional directors with appropriate professional knowledge and industry
experience.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board. Its duties are
clearly defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared and
adopted according to the Code Provisions. The Remuneration Committee is
primarily responsible for the review and determination of the remuneration
policies and packages for Directors and senior management of the Company.
The remuneration packages of the executive Directors are stipulated in
their service agreements with the Company. Such packages, including
basic salaries, director’s fee and discretionary bonus, are determined
by reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, prevailing
market conditions and their expected time spent and contributions on the
affairs of the Company. The emoluments of the independent non-executive
Directors are determined with regard to their estimated time spent on
the affairs of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is currently composed of four members,
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Che
Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman), Dr. Chang Chu Cheng and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun,
and one executive Director, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the remuneration package for each of the Directors and senior management
of the Company.

Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$1,790,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,156,000. The balance of
the remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included
the review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$190,000;
taxation services, amounting to approximately HK$250,000; and other
non-audit services, amounting to approximately HK$194,000.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board. Its duties are clearly
defined in its terms of reference which have been prepared and adopted
according to the Code Provisions. It provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope
of the group audit. It also reviews the Group's financial reporting prior to
their approval by the Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal
audit, evaluation of internal controls and risk management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Yiu Pun with Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng as members. During the year, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed results announcements, interim and annual reports of the
Company, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(2) reviewed the internal controls, risk management and financial matters
of the Group in pursuance of the terms of reference;

(3) reviewed the reports from the auditor of the Company in respect of
the interim and annual financial statements; and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
auditor of the Company.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders of the Company
on pages 34 to 35 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control
is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group through the Audit Committee and the
internal audit team of the Company. The Board has also considered the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Hong Kong, 24 June 2010
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 36 to 98, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’'s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2010
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As at 31 March 2010 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

201063 A31 B (RSB FHBAIN - ABBE)

Group Company
rEE AT
Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
B3 $'000F%  $'000F T $'000F;m  $'000F T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W LR E 6 193,202 201,817 - -
Investment properties BEME 7 1,600 4,440 - -
Leasehold land and land use rights HETHWRTHMERE 8 33,779 35,638 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ERKEE 9 7,513 2,480 - -
Investment in subsidiaries B REZRE 10 - - 139,000 139,000
Total no-curtent asses progzen | 236,094 24375 133000 139000
Current assets TEEE
Inventories wE 11 104,978 104,376 - -
Trade receivables JEUE R 12 163,723 165,666 - -
Other receivables H A & KR 12 24,006 17,070 222 232
Derivative financial instruments MTEERMTA 13 171 880 - -
Other financial assets at fair BATEFAEZN
value through profit or loss HimB G EE 14 73,885 8,667 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE KB B X 77&5 10 - - 179,680 179,216
Current income tax recoverable B qEk=p: gy 720 - 40 -
Fixed deposits THER 15 6,810 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 15 385,407 415,846 9,831 340
Total current assets n@AERE 759,700 712,505 189,773 179,788
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables NG 16 96,786 60,103 - -
Accruals and other payables [T B R N HAER TR 16 80,872 98,098 6,501 6,021
Current income tax liabilities BHMEHAE 16,776 16,646 = 59
Bank borrowings RITEN 17 26,107 16,988 - -
Total current liabilities n@RERE 220,541 191,835 6,501 6,080
Net current assets nBEEFE ! 539,159 520670 | 183,272 173,708
Total assets less current liabilities mEAEMRBAEE 00000 | 775,253 765,045 322,272 312,708
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Deferred income EELTUIWK 1,986 - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHERE 18 1,132 1,892 - -
Total non-current liabilities FrnpakeE 0 3118 182 - -
Net assets EEFE 772,135 763,153 322,272 312,708
Equity B
Capital and reserves attributable to FENADAERREAA
the Company's equity holders AR R
Share capital [N ) 19 40,639 39,919 40,639 39,919
Other reserves Hofth 21 186,060 177,376 239,823 231,483
Retained earnings R & A
- Proposed dividends —EZERE 28 32,803 35,927 32,803 35,927
- Others —Hf 468,688 465,477 9,007 5,379
728,190 718,699 322,272 312,708
Minority interests LR EER 43,945 44,454 = -
Total equity Bamast 772,135 763,153 322,272 312,708
YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON
BEH R T 4
Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
*E =S E

The notes on pages 40 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FA40EBAEZHEIMEFEP BRI 2N -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ErSEXRERERAE

Consolidated Statement.of Comprehens

2009/2010

ive Income

HZE2010F3A31BIEFE(BRBEHAIN - IBEFH)
Note 2010 2009
B &E $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Revenue A ‘ 22 913,229 1,264,996
Cost of sales 5 E AR (729,664) (1,009,398)
Gross profit EH 183,565 255,598
Other gains — net HAb Uy as — 7F58 23 74 10,664
Distribution and selling expenses %7 #8 M $5 & 5 1 (19,046) (19,205)
General and administrative — M RITHE
expenses (102,753) (137,413)
Operating profit £ R A 24 61,840 109,644
Finance income B WA 25 1,481 7,710
Finance costs BhE AR 25 (1,067) (3,440)
Profit before income tax R BT 45 B AT Y A 62,254 113,914
Income tax expenses Fris®is 26 (7,260) (15,773)
Profit for the year A®REN 54,994 98,141
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2 E W :
Fair value gains on AHEEMBEED
available-for-sale financial NEBERE
assets 352 116
Currency translation differences ME 5 Z=EE 881 8,167
Release of exchange reserves FRENE — B A Fl e
upon dissolution of PR bR 2 B 5 &
a subsidiary - (6,286)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE -
for the year, net of tax emegH=E 1,233 1,997
Total comprehensive income FAEHEKELRE
for the year 56,227 100,138
Profit attributable to: i A B B
Equity holders of the Company NARERA A 51,142 91,296
Minority interests DER R 3,852 6,845
54,994 98,141
Total comprehensive MrERHEER
income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RATIREREB A 52,326 92,901
Minority interests DER R 3,901 7,237
56,227 100,138
Dividends % 2 28 48,771 59,879
Earnings per share for profit FRNBRBEART
attributable to the equity IRERB A2
holders of the Company s ) ) & AR & A
during the year
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EAR(FRRABW) 29 12.8 22.9
- Diluted (HK cents per share) —#5E (FREW) 29 12.7 22.9

The notes on pages 40 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FAEBE KT N ESEEYBRERZIBMH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE2010F3A31 B LFR (BB EHRBIN - AIBBHE)

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

FRALAREREA
Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings interest Total
Note BA  HttRE  REET SBRREZ @t
k=3 §'000F 7t §'000F 7T §'000F 7T §'000F T §'000F ¢
At 1 April 2008 1420084 1R 38,119 128,334 502,049 40,157 708,659
Profit for the year AERET - - 91,296 6,845 98,141
Other comprehensive income: A2ENE
— Change in fair value of - HEHBEE
available-for-sale financial assets ATEEE 21 - 116 - - 116
- Currency translation differences -ERER Al - 1,775 - 39 8,167
- Release of exchange reserves upon -BHE-WBLAN
dissolution of a subsidiary Frial 2 B 2 - (6,286) - - (6,286)
Total comprehensive income for HZ2009F3A31LFRE
the year ended 31 March 2009 PENHEE - 1,605 91,296 7,237 100,138
Employee share option scheme: EERRENE
~ Value of employee services -EERKBE 21 - 1,100 - - 1,100
— Proceeds from shares issued upon -IRRRENET
exercise of share options Rin 2 FEHE 21 1,800 18,266 - - 20,066
Capitalisation of statutory reserves and E-MBLRZERRER
retained earnings of a subsidiary as 1%aa/ﬁn$‘]%ﬁﬁ$
paid-up capital FEHER 21 - 24,543 (24,543) - -
Appropriation of statutory reserves EEREDR 21 - 3,528 (3,528) - -
Dividends paid BRRE - - (63,870) (2,940) (66,810)
At 31 March 2009 ®2009€3831A 39,919 171,376 501,404 44,454 763,153
Profit for the year REERT - - 51,142 3,852 54,994
Other comprehensive income: At 2 EME -
- Change in fair value of available-for-sale - BEE
financial assets ATEEE 21 - 352 - - 352
- Currency translation differences -BEREE N - 832 - 49 881
Total comprehensive income for HEW0F3ANALEE
the year ended 31 March 2010 PENHEE - 1,184 51,142 3,901 56,227
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE
—Value of employee services -EERKBE 2 = (207) = = (207)
- Proceeds from shares issued —TRRERENET
upon exercise of share options RinzFrE5R 21 720 8,547 - - 9,267
Release of property revaluation reserve LERENER
upon disposal of investment properties ik 2 ME SRR 21 = (1,067) 1,067 - -
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERED K 21 - 21 (227) - -
Dividends paid ERE - - (51,895) (4,410) (56,305)
At 31 March 2010 1#2010%3A31R 40,639 186,060 501,491 43,945 172,135

The notes on pages 40 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GEBESmER
For the year ended 31 March 2010 (expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
HZE2010F3A31BIEFE(BRBEHAIN - IBEFH)
Note 2010 2009
B &E $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Cash flows from operating RETHHESRE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEEBFB2ES 31(a) 121,029 168,648
Interest paid EARALE (1,067) (3,440)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EENEH (6,440) (16,336)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded EREBBNEH 785 -
Mainland China enterprise B A B A 1 EE PSR
income tax paid (2,955) (4,996)
Net cash generated from KEFRHREZREFH
operating activites 111352 77777777777777 143,876
Cash flows from investing RETHRERE
activities
Interest received B U F B 1,481 7,710
Purchase of property, BAME - BEMEE
plant and equipment (34,893) (29,368)
Purchase of other financial BARAFEFAEREDN
assets at fair value through BB EE
profit or loss (64,767) (408,595)
Purchase of available-for-sale BANHEHENBERE
financial assets (4,681) (2,364)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WE &R E
plant and equipment Fr 5 5k 18 307 209
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMSIEA
investment properties 2,873 -
Proceeds from disposal of other HERAFEFT AERD
financial assets at fair value E % EEMSHIA
through profit or loss 2,166 445,676
Increase in fixed deposits TE BT R4 0 (6,810) -
Net cash (used in)/generated BEZE(FA)FE
from investing activities ZHBeHEw® (104,324) 13,268
Cash flows from financing MEFTHRERE
activities 31(b)
Issue of shares upon exercise A 170 B AR T 2 T AR
of share options 9,267 20,066
Dividends paid to a minority BT E R R LB E
shareholder of a subsidiary ZIRE (4,410) (2,940)
Dividends paid BT B (51,895) (63,870)
New bank loans FIBIRITE R 26,077 59,595
Repayment of bank loans EEBRITER (17,007) (76,376)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBAMAReF8E (37,968) ~ (63,525)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekReEEY
and cash equivalents ORd) /18 0% 58 (30,940) 93,619
Exchange differences MEH =5 501 (3,366)
Cash and cash equivalents FURERREEEY
at beginning of the year 415,846 325,593
Cash and cash equivalents FRBELBEFEY
at end of the year 385,407 415,846

The notes on pages 40 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
SE40E=98H Z MG Tt & M5z 2 21D ©
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(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREABHAI - BB E)
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General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and
other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 June 2010.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations

The Group has adopted the following new and amended HKFRS
as of 1 April 2009. The adoption of these new standards and
amendments does not have any significant impact to the
results and financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (revised), “Presentation of financial statements”
— effective 1 January 2009. The revised standard prohibits
the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is,
“non-owner changes in equity”) in the statement of changes
in equity, requiring “non-owner changes in equity” to be
presented separately from owner changes in equity in a
statement of comprehensive income. As a result, the Group
presents all owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner
changes in equity are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Entity can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or
two statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present
one performance statement: the statement of comprehensive
income. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the revised disclosure requirements. The change
in presentation has no impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” — effective 1 January 2009.
HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14, “Segment reporting”. It requires
a "management approach” under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. Thus, the Group’s business operation is
organised into two reportable segments which are headsets
and headphones, and accessories and components.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the executive directors who collectively make
strategic decisions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations (Continued)

HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments — Disclosures” (amendment)
— effective 1 January 2009. The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement hierarchy.
As the change in accounting policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on earnings per share.

The following amendments to standards and interpretations
are also mandatory for the Group for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 April 2009:
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HKFRSs (Amendments)
BETBHREEN(EFIAR)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

BREMBREEANEIR R
BRGERIE27THR(BETA)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
BAPMBHREENE2R(EFTTA)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
BB EREIR(EEET)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendments)

BEREEUBENKREL GRS 1R (EFTA)

HK (IFRIC) = Int 9 and HKAS 39 (Amendments)
EE(EEMEREZRBEES) -REEIRR
B GRIERIE395E (BT A)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 13
EE(ERHEREREZRE) -RBS 130

HK (IFRIC) - Int 15
EE(ERHEREREZRE) -RBS15%

XBH

HK (IFRIC) - Int 16
EE(ERHEREREZRE) -RES16%

HK (IFRIC) - Int 18
EE(ERHEREREZEE) -RES18%

TESTBEBRES)

2.1 WAEEEE)

(a) HRAFETER - ERIEFT R 2 FE
()

BBV BmEEREIRI ST
B BT (BEFTA) — 82009614
THRBAES - ZEIENTEAA
FEAERADECRABR ZIERE -
ZIETERNRERTANATFE
SATESIADARBEE - LEHK
REBHIARBHEIIMNE  HER
AFRBHE -

THERMEFT RZRETEARE R
7R2009F4 A1 B sk AR A8 2 BT IR
FEoR BB AN -

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008'
BB IS RI20084F 2 BUE!

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

REEAR - ARZEHEBRBEQRNRERK

Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

DB In RERE 2 /BR8] — BB R Rt

Borrowing Costs

fEERA

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation
BRELAZIAEEMIARER

Embedded Derivatives
BRARITETLR
Customer Loyalty Programmes

EPBHMEE

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

B ERERZ

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

BN EBFRE

Transfer of Assets from Customers?

KEFPEBEE
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2

2009/2010

IR BERBEE)
21 REEE(H)

(a)

FRAFATER ~ ERIFIEFTR 28
TEE)

! Effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, “Non-current assets held for

sale and discontinued operations”, which is effective for the financial year beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

BEBMBHREEINESFFELENIERBDEERCRIELEER | ZERTINZEFT H200957 H1 A FRKRK AR ZH

Rz EEAMET RRBE AR E
B XA MMM EBEEREAR
@,

B 177 {8 5 K £ 3 2 R By 15 5T K

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations (Continued)
HEFAR)  ERETHAKEM S HH2009F4 71 BRBHK AR ZBBREF AR
2 Effective for transfer of assets received on or after 1 July 2009.
FINEBLEEN2009F7 A1 Bk A AR -
The adoption of these amendments to standards and
interpretations did not result in a significant impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations that have

been issued but are not effective

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued, but are not effective for
the Group's financial year beginning on 1 April 2009 and

(b)

2

THIFTRTER] - ERIMERT KR E
R2009F4A1HHABZHHEFEED
MEAE R AR B I EIR R o

have not been early adopted.

e HKFRSs (Amendment)
BBV BHREER(EFTA)

e HKFRSs (Amendment)
B R A ER (BRI A)

e HKFRS 1 (Revised)
B HREER B 5 (KBET)

e HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
BB BEHREERE1RE(EFTA)

e HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
T B IR B 2% (13T )

e HKFRS 3 (Revised)
B HREERIEIFR (LBET)

e HKFRS 9
BEMBHREERFE IR

e HKAS 24 (Revised)
BB SR AERE 2455 (57T

e HKAS 27 (Revised)
BB G ERE275 (LI5ET)

e HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BB G ERFERUBFIA)

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
B I % A RI20094F 2 B

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010°
BERY M ELER20105 2 DS

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs'
BIRRME B s AR

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters?

BRRNE 2B R

Group Cash-settled Shared-based Payment Transaction?
SENUREE 2RO KRR H?

Business Combinations’

EHas

Financial Instruments®

TRTAS

Related Party Disclosures?
B hc N

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’

NS E AV E

Classification on Right Issue?
A 182
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2

Bt E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to standards and interpretations that have

been issued but are not effective (Continued)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
BB GETERIE395R (BT A)

HK (IFRIC) — 14 (Amendment)
BB (ERMHEREENREZES)
—E145 (1R A)

HK (IFRIC) = Int 17
EE(BEBRUSERELENREZES)
—REBE175H (BT AR)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19
EE (BB SEREENRELZES)
—REBFE195 (BT AK)

Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
F2009F7 A1 B3k 2 1& B tE < BT IF E A
Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
F2010F1 A1 sk 2 £ B 2 MBFEEK
Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
H20104F2 A1 H 3k 2 & FAA 2 BT F E A
Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
F20105F7 A1 B3k 2 18 B R < BT F E A
Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
H2011 1 A1 B2 BB 2 WEFEEK
Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1

201361 A1 Bk 2 BB 2 IBF EEX

IR BRBE A
2.1 RUEE(H)

R (E)

Eligible Hedged Items’
SEBRE HIEA!

Prepayment of a Minimum Funding Requirement?

RIEE S ERK 2 A IR

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

AEEADIKIEREEE

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments*
MBEARTAKHESRAR

July 2009

January 2010

February 2010

July 2010

January 2011

January 2013

(b) B 7% {8 /s K £ 2 E R By 55T K

The directors anticipate that the adoption of other standards,
amendments to standards, interpretation will not result in
a significant impact on the results and financial position
of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

(a)

44

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

BEE=FEG  RAEMER - ERIW
BRI hEBEAREEERPBEN
RBBREATE -

2.2 ZREKRE

AEEUBHRREEBEARRREMEN
BAREZE3A3A L2 HBHE -

(a) HEBAA

MEBAREASEAEEEELMK
REEBRRZIMBEER  —RWH
RBBFEIREREZRAE - BRI E
AEEREEN S —ERE - BA
ATERA LB BEREE LT
ERFEHTER -
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary in the consolidated financial statements, to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group that are recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Purchases from minority
interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors who

collectively make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or

qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income presented are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average rate is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost less residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

2.5% to 8'/3%
10% to 30%
20% to 30%

30%

Buildings

Machinery and moulds
Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within other
gains-net, in the statement of comprehensive income.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents factories and office buildings
under construction; and machinery and equipment pending
installation. It is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
Cost includes the original cost of land, construction expenditures
incurred, machinery and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation
of machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction work
is completed and ready for intended use.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies
in the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted
for as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for
as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by
the International Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property;
others, including contingent rent payments, are not recognised
in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

2

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#H

EEHRBE @)
2.7 REME

FERMES KRN E R B ENREFF
WEYHFEEBETSRRMERAZTME
BEREEDE -

REMFERACEHERA2 LR
NREHERFGZET -

NELEHERFE 2L HMTAREME
ZEBEER ORBE/REMEREL
AR FRAZKRLHEENNREERES
BN

1B E B R A (BIE R B
A5t -

EERERR REVERAFEA
R R TFEDNAERTSERSER
RUBERIEEEEZEE - N
MZERFEHAR - EREEBUETE
B AREBFERBR NGRS Z 08
ERIMBARSRERNEEMEES
* e REHENREERGEELENZE
CHEMZIESIMET - ZFEHESFH
SNER I (ERDAETTRT 2

BREWMEZ A FERR(ESRBE)RE
HEZHSWARARK AR B &
HEMBZHS WA -

RNFETEZER - EERREBMEZE
AEHRE AL - WFRE R L0’
RE—HAE BRERBE/REREME
ZtwEEsmEEREAG  ASREE
mi (BRIARE N F) RITF AMB
| -

Bl 1 37 H 40 BE 75 2R R 2R AR A &R AR
SEBZEX LA R ER - I 7
ARAZBEECREEE - MAEEMA
ERREXRAREEEZMBAR 22
m R ASIER ©

49



Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009/2010

Notes to the Financial Statements

Sk 5 St o B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHAEI -

2

50

Bt E)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Changes in fair values are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
statement of financial position date, which are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as trade and other receivables in the statement of financial
position (Note 2.12).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the statement of financial
position date.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on the date of trade — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Investments are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category,
are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within
“other gains” in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity. Changes in
the fair value of monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the statement of comprehensive income as “gains
and losses from investment securities”. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when the Group's right to
receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through the
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment testing of trade
receivables is described in Note 2.12.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. At
31 March 2010, the Group did not designate any derivatives as
hedging instruments.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the statement of financial position date.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the statement of
financial position date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
plans in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The schemes are
generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan. The
fair value of the options granted for the employee services is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each statement of financial
position date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the related risks and
rewards of ownership of the products delivered have passed
to the customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees and handling income
Management fees and handling income are recognised when

the relevant services are rendered.

Rental income

(d)
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group performs a
liability adequacy test at each statement of financial position date
by comparing its net liability regarding the financial guarantee
with the amount that would be required if the financial guarantee
were to result in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the
liability is less than its present legal or constructive obligation
amount, the entire difference is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. During the year, no provision has been
made in the financial statements for the financial guarantees.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the Group's financial statements in the year in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.24 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited
to the statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars (“USD").
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage such exposure. The net fair value
of foreign exchange forward contracts entered into by
the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March
2010 was HK$171,000 (2009: HK$880,000) and has been
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

At 31 March 2010, if HKD/USD had weakened/strengthened
by 2% (2009: 5%) against RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,934,000 (2009: HK$3,246,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of RMB-denominated monetary
assets and liabilities.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MKEABER#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiIEBREEE)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) TEREE(E)

(ii) Price risk (i) EERER

The Group's structured deposits, listed securities and
investment funds are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
Management considered that the exposure of structured
deposits, listed securities and investment funds to price
risk is not significant.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for certain bank deposits, the Group's income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings.
The Group will review whether bank loans bearing fixed
or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with
reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

The Group's bank borrowings were primarily at fixed rates
which expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group generally does not use financial derivatives
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets and bank borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

At 31 March 2010, the Company had provided guarantees in
respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries. Credit risk
relating to those guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2009: HK$198,029,000), which represented
the notional amounts of such guarantees.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put in place
policies to ensure that sales of products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history. The Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers and takes appropriate
follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, substantially all cash and
bank deposits are placed with major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China; all financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-
for-sale financial assets are also placed with those financial
institutions which management believes are of high credit
quality. Management does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the
Group. The Group also maintains a healthy level of liquid assets
and committed banking facilities to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the ordinary course of business. At 31
March 2010, the Group has unutilised committed banking
facilities of HK$238,150,000 (2009: HK$253,892,000).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities,
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting
period at the statement of financial position to the contractual
maturity date are within 12 months. The amounts disclosed

it
ﬂﬂﬁl}

i

MBRREE W)

3.1 BiIEBREEE)
(c) "EBEZRFE(E)

TRAOMAEBEZMIEAE -
BIRRKXZBERHEREER

EXERBIRAT  2009/2010 F3;

F 1
#)

BB ZHRTHEA/NZEARN - &
PHRECREAANARBBARSR

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. £ °
2010 2009
$'000F 5T $'000F 7T
Trade and other payables JE A< 8 R % L Ath JE A R IE 177,492 150,519
Bank borrowings, secured H|ITHER - BEM 26,107 16,988
Interest payables FEA FIE 901 722
204,500 168,229

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, the Group was at the net cash
position.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MKEBER#)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 A¥EME
Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the amendment 20091 A1H B - AEBEMNF B
to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the MBEREEBFIRERERIALE
statement of financial position at fair value, this requires disclosure ERBRARELAFEFENER B
of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value RERTINAFEFERERELTE
measurement hierarchy: A
Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for R - HABEEXBEEEEMSD
identical assets or liabilities. WECRERAE) -
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level Fp - BEIEGBZWABLIELE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either REVRAZHRE - A EE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived H(ER)EEL(EER S
from prices). i) AT ER SR o
Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based F3 - BEIEGEZEABILIFKE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable A B 2R 2 Th i B (B AR B
inputs). R A) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured AEBER2010F3A31B R FEFE
at fair value at 31 March 2010. BWEEWRT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R FE2R FE3IR Mt
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value  ZAFEFFAER
through profit or loss BB 15 & B
— Structured deposits —ERBEER - 67,449 - 67,449
— Listed securities and —ETmREHFR
investment funds REE® 6,436 - - 6,436
Derivatives financial instruments $T4£ & @ T & - 171 - 171
Available-for-sale A ENEEE
financial assets
Corporate bonds TtEES 7,513 - - 7,513
Total assets BEE 13,949 67,620 - 81,569

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-
for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
statement of financial position date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities

is the current ask price.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each statement of financial position date.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market
rates at the statement of financial position date.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.
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Bt E)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense
in future periods.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables.
Provisions are applied to bills receivable and accounts receivable
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of trade receivables and impairment is recognised
in the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Management judgment is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
whether appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing
cash flow projections including using an appropriate discount
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management in the
impairment assessment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it may
be necessary to charge an impairment loss to the statement of

comprehensive income.

(f) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group relies on bank valuations to determine the fair value of
financial instruments which in turn are determined using various
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models. Judgment is required in the calculation of
such valuations. Changes in the underlying assumptions could

impact profit and loss or equity.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management

has determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and

components.
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Segment information (continued)

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

5 ZEMER(E)

TBEERRARBDMREFERED B
ZRE ZEBAITBELEXH  Httl
mNMEE - BEWRARKAE -

7 BRI U A TI AR IR RT A9 & 77 — BRI fE Z 165K
T o SNRRAG KRB E TIHAEP R
meErmbaR BT HAFE -

Headsets and Accessories and
headphones components Elimination Total
ARERR
FEEH BHERES s A
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F 7 $'000F7T $'000F 7T

§'000F 7  $'000F7 $'000F7T $'000FT $'000F7T

Total segment revenue N L 596,696 874,323 316,533 390,673 - - 913,229 1,264,996
Inter-segment revenue SEERA - - 89,746 159,000 (89,746)  (159,000) - -
Revenue WA 596,696 874,323 406,279 549,673 (89,746)  (159,000) 913,229 1,264,996
Segment results nEbEE 42,566 74,642 24,947 27,285 - - 67,513 101,927
Corporate expenses rETH (5,747) (2,947)
Other gains - net Hitls — 38 74 10,664
Finance income BEKA 1,481 7,710
Finance costs BMEKK (1,067) (3,440)
Profit before income tax ~ FRFTETRATE R 62,254 113,914
Depreciation of property, 9% - BER
plant and equipment HETE 26,287 30,651 14,684 15,380 - - 40,971 46,031
Amortisation of leasehold ~ FAE i R+t
land and land use rights i 1R 5
- Segment amortisation ~ — 9 #PE 394 394 162 162 - - 556 556
- Corporate amortisation ~ — £ %5 300 522
856 1,078

During the year, the Group has reassessed the reportable segments such
that segment revenue generated from operations has been reported
in the segments of headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components accordingly. The comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform to the current year's presentation.

TR AKEEEHNFETE2HEIE - Fl
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6 Property, plant and equipment 6 YME- -HBEKRRE
Group
X5E
Construction- Machinery Furniture and Motor
Buildings  in-progress  and moulds equipment vehicles Total
g3 HEIR HERERE HARSES AE okl
$'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T
At 1 April 2008 R200854818
Cost A 164,554 - 268,655 103,813 14,122 551,144
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTE (34,995) - (217,803) (71,131) (12,608) (336,537)
Net book amount FEFE 129,559 - 50,852 32,682 1,514 214,607
Year ended 31 March 2009 #EHZE2009%
3ANALEE
Opening net hook amount FOEBEE 129,559 - 50,852 32,682 1,514 214,607
Additions b - 4,073 17,922 4,693 2,680 29,368
Disposals & - - (13) (150) - (163)
Depreciation charge TERX (4,743) - (26,628) (13,226) (1,434) (46,031)
Transfer B - - (184) 184 - -
Exchange differences ERESR 2,642 9 676 684 25 4,036
Closing net hook amount FREMFE 127,458 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 201,817
At 31 March 2009 R20093A31H
Cost XA 167,196 4,082 287,056 109,224 16,827 584,385
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (39,7398) - (244,431) (84,357) (14,042) (382,568)
Net book amount REFE 127,458 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 201,817
Year ended 31 March 2010 EZ2010%
3A3MALEE
Opening net hook amount ~ FHIHREFE 127,458 4,082 42,625 24,867 2,785 201,817
Additions N 247 15,723 11,057 4,599 3,267 34,893
Disposals & - - (2,805) (111) - (2,916)
Depreciation charge HEMZ (5,372) - (21,954) (12,044) (1,601) (40,971)
Transfer 28 12,130 (17,542) - 5,412 - -
Exchange differences ERER 270 7 48 51 3 379
Closing net book amount FRERTE 134,733 2,270 28,971 22,774 4,454 193,202
At 31 March 2010 RH201063A318
Cost BN 179,946 2,210 286,977 117,584 19,403 606,180
Accumulated depreciation ZitHe (45,213) - (258,006) (94,810) (14,949) (412,978)
Net book amount EHFE 134,733 2,270 28,971 22,774 4,454 193,202
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$31,140,000 (2009: HK$36,056,000) has
been included in cost of sales and HK$9,831,000 (2009: HK$9,975,000)
in general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2010, the net book value of property, plant and equipment
being pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$37,895,000 (2009: HK$38,892,000).

M BERRE )

Hr & 31,140,000 7 (2009 : 36,056,000
BIL) B AR EE KA 29,831,000 7T
(2009 : 9,975,000/ 8 ) R — M RITHR I H -

R20106F3 8318 - W2 - BE Ma& i < BREDF
EE B - (EAAREEES4 537,895,000
70(2009 : 38,892,000/ 7T ) RTTRLE 2 @R o

Investment properties REWE

Group

TEME
2010 2009
$'000F 5T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F9) 4,440 5,220
Disposals k= (2,990) -
Fair value gains/(losses) NEEWZE (FBE) 150 (780)
End of the year FIR 1,600 4,440

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2010 by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book values
are analysed as follows:

R2010F3831H » HEVERBIEXEE
BEEMMNEITIEMAR AT ETER -
HEDRBERERT S ZIRITERET

AEBRNRRENE Y BEFEZ BB A
mE

2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T

Hong Kong — held on leases  &HHE —10FE
between 10 to 50 years S0F AR 1,600 4,440
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8 Leasehold land and land use rights 8 MEITHRIMFERARE
Group
REME
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F4 35,638 21,527
Transfer from EREERDIES
non-current deposits - 14,627
Amortisation of prepaid BIHTAN RS MO FIE
operating lease payment (856) (1,078)
Provision for impairment loss BB/ E#E (1,057) -
Exchange differences MEHEH 54 562
End of the year FR 33,779 35,638
At 31 March 2010, the net book value of leasehold land and land use 201063 HA318 - HE LM R T fEAE 2
rights pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted REFEE TER  ERAEERSGRAOA
to approximately HK$4,478,000 (2009: HK$4,575,000). 4,478,0007% JT.(2009 : 4,575,0007% 7t ) 35 17 @k

B2EMAm -

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent AEBRHEETH R T FRAE  E=RTE
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are analysed M EHORBREEEFESINTEAT ¢
as follows:
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Hong Kong — held on BAE-L0FR
leases between 10 to S0F AR
50 years 10,689 10,976
Mainland China — held on REIAH — LA10E =
leases between 10 to S0F AR
50 years 23,090 24,662
33,779 35,638
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9 Available-for-sale financial assets 9 HAHEHENKEE
Group
TEH
2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year F9) 2,480 -
Additions EE 4,681 2,364
Fair value gain transferred to & =i 2 A FEWE
equity (Note 21) (HtzE21) 352 116
End of the year FIR 7,513 2,480
At 31 March 2010, the Group's available-for-sale financial assets 2010638318 - AEEZIHEBEHBHE
represented investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds EEREGS ZEREBEFZATELR
was based on their current bid price in an active market provided by BROGHTREERRFRMS 2EAEM
counterparties. TE °©
10 Investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 RBAT 2R E R EWFIE

a) Investment in subsidiaries

a) RMEBARZRE

Company
KA F
2010 2009
$'000F 5T $'000F 7T
Unlisted shares, at cost  3F_E TR 9 1Z X ANME 51| BR 139,000 139,000

The underlying value of the investment in subsidiaries is, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors, not less than the carrying
value at 31 March 2010.

b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free,
and repayable on demand. HK$8,110,000 of the total balance
is denominated in US dollars, and the remaining balances are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

70

ARBEERE  KERKNBARZHEE
BERPR2010F3A31B 2 REE °

b) FEWHEQTKEA

B B ARG KB HERR - £ 8 KA
HEKEERE o RNIEALTEH 8,110,000
WITLAZETLYIER - Mgk T 3 IE A A T
HIBR o
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10

Investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries

(Continued)

c¢) Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

ETSEXRERERAE

) FEWEBAF

2009/2010 =8

10 AMBRARIZKRERERRIE (&)

TEA20105F3031A 2T EHBAT -

2010:
Place of incorporation/ Particulars
Principal place of issued
Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (iii)
EauEE Ve
A1 TELEHE TEEH BRITRAFE PR RE 24 (iii)
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$3 100%
REAERDE B trading of electro-acoustic 3BT
products and accessories
REEBRREESE
B R B
Charter Media (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture of electro-acoustic HK$140,000,000 100%
Company Limited (7) RN, products and accessories 140,000,000/ 7T
w4 (R%) &F HEBBERREN
AEDE (1)
Dongguan Full Rich Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Product Bl /i precision metal parts 5,000,000/% 7T
Company Limited (i) WERBEERT ORI
REEERThoEm
BRRA ()
Fujikon Electrical Limited  Hong Kong Investment holding HK$3 100%
ELREXERAA B RAER 3BT
Fujikon Europe GmbH (7))  Germany Trading of electro-acoustic EUR 25,000 100%
(e products and accessories 25,0008 T
BEEEBEMREN
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$3,000 100%
Limited (i) (vii) RERAEE RERRK 3,000% T
Fujikon Industrial Hong Kong Design, manufacture, marketing Class A -
Company Limited s and trading of electro-acoustic (non-voting) (iv)
BETREEXBRAA products and accessories HK$2,400,000
REr o BECEER AR R
BESBEMREMN (BEZRE)(v)
2,400,000 1T
Class B 100%
(voting)(iv)
HK$600,000
BAR AR 10
(B&RZE)(v)
600,000/ T
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10 Investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries 10 R B AT 2R EREWFKIE £)

(Continued)
c) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) 0 TEMBAT(E)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars
Principal place of issued
Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (iii)
g
A1 TELERE TEEH BRITRAFE FR S RE 2 (ifi)
Fujikon International Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HKS3 100%
Limited e of transformers and 3BT
ETRERBRAT power adaptors
REEBRREEZER
RENEESR
Fujikon Packing Material ~ Hong Kong Manufacture and trading of HK$10,000 51%
Company Limited % packaging materials 10,0005 7T
ETRBENH WEREERENE
BRAF
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited Bk manufacture and trading 10,0005 7T
EIRETRGEM of precision metal parts
BRAF REEBRREER
BEREOSRMN
Fujikon Technology Hong Kong Investment holding HK$100,000 100%
Limited (vii) BE RERK 100,000 7T
ELRRAERRE Vi)
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Mainland China Manufacture and trading HK$5,000,000 100%
Electrical Products FEIA of electro-acoustic products 5,000,000/ 7T
Limited (i) and accessories
BB (RR) E8kH HEREREREMREH
BEAF)
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Provision of management services HK$2 100%
BRAERAF BB REER R VET
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$100 100%
URAERAF & ESSE ] 1007 7T
Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Investment holding and trading HK$150 100%
Limited % of electro-acoustic products 1508 7T
EELZRARAA and accessories
REZKLEESE
B R B
Zhejiang Fousine Science  Mainland China Manufacture and trading of RMB60,000,000 70%
& Technology Company R EIA PVC beads, wires and cables AR #60,000,0007C
Limited (v) HEREERAL
WL E BRI BRR - HERER
BRiDERDE W

12



Notes to the Financial Statements

S 25 S A B i

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRm BB -

10

Investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries

PR

(Continued)

c)

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

ETSEXRERERAE

2009/2010 =8

10 AMBRARIZKRERERRIE (&)

« EEMEATE)

Place of incorporation/
Principal place

Particulars
of issued

Name of operation Principal activities share capital Interest held (iii)
B3R
A8 TERERHY TEEH BRITRAFE Fir f5 R 25 (i)
Profits (Dongguan) Electric Mainland China Manufacture and trading of HK$5,384,228 100%
Products Company FEIAM transformers and power adaptors 5,384,228/ L
Limited (1) HEREEEESRR
BE (X%) 2¥4m BhEES
BRAR()
Score Merit Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
FERERAH Bk REZKR VET
Smart Success British Virgin Islands Investment holding Uss$100 100%
Management Limited ~ EBEZEHE REEK 100X 7T
RREEIREERE Mainland China Dormant HK$15,150,000 100%
BRRF() (vii) HEl i EEXH 15,150,000/ 7
Dongguan Fortune Packing Mainland China Dormant HK$2,000,000 51%
Products Company lE g Lmxn 2,000,000 ¢
Limited (vi)
REEROFER
BRRF (vi)
Notes: BsE
(i)  Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich (i) HBERZ)EFERRAA -  REEHRB
Precision Metal Product Company Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan) ZheRBERAR  BEB(HEx)ES
Electrical Products Limited, Profits (Dongguan) Electric Products REBERAR  BE(RR)ERHLE
Company Limited and HZEE t S EZEHEER A A are wholly RBARERREE T EERIEERAR

(if)

(iii)

foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland China to be
operated for 25 years up to May 2019, 12 years up to October 2016,
12 years up to April 2014, 12 years up to January 2012 and 20 years
up to June 2027, respectively.

Fujikon Europe GmbH, a wholly-owned subsidiary, has discontinued (ii)
its operation and is in the process of de-registration.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by (iii)

the Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

HARFEAMKL 2 INEEEES
¥ ZELEDBLEFE201995
B~ 12F E20165F108 ~ 1249 20145
48 ~12F E2012F1 8 R20F 20274
68 °

Fujikon Europe GmbH (—REZ2EWEB R
RBEA&IEHER - WIEEMRIE R A Z

Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited 2 f% 7 A

ARAREBERE  HWHEL A ZRH
R -

/3
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10 Investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries
(Continued)

<)

74

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

Zhejiang Fousine Science & Technology Company Limited is a sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China with no
fixed duration of operation.

During the year, Dongguan Fortune Packing Products Company Limited,
a wholly foreign owned enterprise, directly held by Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited was established in Mainland China and
to be operated for 25 years up to November 2024.

On 26 April 2010, Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited (“BVI"), the
immediate holding company of Fujikon Technology Limited (with a
wholly owned subsidiary of R5=E £ = EE R H AR A F)), entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors
of the Company and Yield Best International Investment Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong which is wholly-owned by these
three directors (collectively known as “the Purchasers”). Pursuant
to the agreement, BVI has agreed to sell, and the Purchasers have
agreed to purchase the sale shares, which represented the entire
issued share capital of Fujikon Technology Limited and a loan made
by BVI to Fujikon Technology Limited with total considerations of
HK$14,500,000. No material gain or loss for the Group is expected
from the disposal.

10 AMBRrAIZRERERRIE (&)

c)

ETEMBRE (H)
iaE  (4)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

AR (B )RMNIFE AL ERTE -
TREREERAR S - BRIEAR A RIALFIE A
900,000,000,0007%5 7t + B 74 )5 25 5 £ 1
BB EMRSDIK - K 3E900,000,000,0007%5
TLZABERARADIK FBR(FHE
EIRGIFAEA °

MTEAMEEOARAR R —HERF
BAMKSY 2 FIEERNDAEEDRE
AEEEEES -

FR -AETEEEYHAERARER
BE-—RIEEEHALE  REEX
BEMDBERATRFTBE AL - 4
B25FE2024F 118 -

MR2010F48268 ' ELtEBEBRA
A(FEZEMBAR RS TaEE
BHX AR Q) B & 5 % R 2 "lFujikon
Industrial (BVI) Limited ([BVI]) = £ 7K
ARRIEEGEHLE RmALE - A
NERERBEBRBREEGRAR(—
FREBKY  AZ-—REE2EHE
WAR) (I ER DI LEEHE -
BiEZBE BVEREHEMEAE
AERERERELTEREBERARZ
BEBTRAZHERSD KBVILE T =
TEMEERATGZER  BREAR
14,500,000/ 7T - HHAZ H EH T Y
INER B R E KM B 18 o



ELSEXEERAMRAT  2009/2010 Fik
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fop 25 ik 2R B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(KRB BETHAEIN - LUBEEE)
11 Inventories 1 BE&
Group
rEH
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Raw materials R 42,092 38,147
Work-in-progress &M 30,044 30,214
Finished goods E 32,842 36,015
104,978 104,376

12

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$730,643,000 (2009:
HK$1,013,063,000). For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group has
reversed a net amount of inventories obsolescence of approximately
HK$979,000 (2009: HK$3,665,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2010, trade receivables of HK$121,855,000 (2009:
HK$131,357,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to
a number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant
history of default. Trade receivables that are less than three months
past due are not considered impaired except for customers which are
in unexpected difficult economic situations. At 31 March 2010 and
2009, other receivables are mainly placed with counterparties with
no history of default.

12

BRATHEBESREEXNAZHEHEK A
%9 /730,643,0007% 7T (2009 : 1,013,063,000/%5
JT) ° HE2010F3A31 B ILFfE - NEEE B
REFEX) 979,000 75 (2009 : 3,665,000
=)

o

FE U & R R L A B U RO

REFERFEFIE1208 ZEEH o R20104
3A318 @ FEURE R A121,855,0005% 7T (2009 :
131,357,000 7T ) B #2380 HA KORi (B © i S 5078
HBETFTUEABERERLENBIRTF,A
B o RIETEAE N EEREE 2 RN - 8 H
D3ME A 2 B E TR AIR(E © 722010
F &2009F3A31H - EtEWRHKIEBEBEERE
WEH R ERILEE IR PE T °
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued) 12 ERERREMERNKIEE)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as LA EA B F5E51) 2 B E SREREC AT a0 T
follows:
Group Company
r5H b NN
2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T

Current 2 H 121,855 131,357 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZ30H 24,176 21,736 - -
31 to 60 days 3THZE60H 13,421 10,848 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 3,696 4,156 - -
Over 90 days 90HME 5,655 3,964 - -
168,803 172,061 - -
Less: Provision for impairment o ERER
of trade receivables MEEE (5,080) (6,395) = -
Trade receivables, net FBURE 38 163,723 165,666 = -
Other receivables Hit e ra 24,006 17,070 222 232
187,729 182,736 222 232
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables and other N5 B e B R R B At R W RN IE 2 AR TE (B B
receivables approximate their fair values. HERAFERE -
As at 31 March 2010, trade receivables from the five largest customers 201063 A31H ' RERAARF ZEWER
accounted for approximately 24.5% (2009: 50.7%) of the total trade A1k 4B FE UL 5X24.5% (2009 : 50.7%) ° A%
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed EHEERR 2 EERMFINEE -
in Note 3.
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12 Trade and other receivables (continued) 12

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

ETEEXRERARLT  2009/2010 F#H

FE W & R B2 EL i BB W RO (4T

AN £ [ 1B W B SR e EL fth P UK R TR A A B TEE
AT SIS %58 -

Group Company
rEH NN

2010 2009 2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F T
Hong Kong dollars BT 19,090 15,552 222 232
Renminbi AEE 65,760 65,261 - -
US dollars ET 102,879 101,897 - -
Other currencies Hip g - 26 = -
187,729 182,736 222 232

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for

the Group are as follows:

AEBZERBETRERBESHNOT

Group
rEE
2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T
Beginning of the year E4) 6,395 5,272
(Write-back of)/provision FEUWETBERR), B
for impairment (36) 2,048
Receivables written off Al E 2 s E
as uncollectible (1,280) (958)
Exchange differences ERES 1 33
End of the year FR 5,080 6,395

The impairment provision made during the year has been included in
the general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

FREHZRERBEF AR EZERER
Z—RRITER T -

17
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13

14

/8

LABREETE)

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, derivative financial instruments mainly
represented foreign exchange forward contracts and the amounts are
denominated in US dollars.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts at 31 March 2010 are HK$434,840,000 (2009: HK$255,783,000).
These foreign exchange forward contracts are held for trading and are
expected to mature at various dates during the next 12 months.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

13

14

TTESmIA
720104 K20094F3A31H » fTEES G T A+
SIHINEREL  LANESFBEUAETIE -

M2010F3A31H - REEINERBIE N 2%
A% 5 /5434,840,0007% 7£(2009 : 255,783,000
BIL) - ZEFHEEEZINERREOBEHF
AR K121E A R [F B B Z) 5 -

BAFEFABSENHBHMBEE

Group

rEEH
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F T

Listed equity securities and ~ FHREEHFREMEE

other investments 6,436 4,357
Structured deposits BEEMETR 67,449 4,310
73,885 8,667

As at 31 March 2010, structured deposits represented currency linked
capital protected investments with notional amount of US$8,000,000
and HK$4,000,000 and with maturity periods from 6 to 54 months
after the year end date. Management has the option of disposing the
investment at any time in the market.

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated
in the following currencies:

M2010F3A31H @ &M FRIEHEE K H
02 RAIRE - B KD FEAS8,000,000% T K&
4,000,000/8 7T © WA FE A R&6E541E A 2
H - EREABEHRAMBHEZSERE -

BAFEAABRSNEMMBEENTIE
BB

Group

rEH
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Hong Kong dollars BT 30,991 8,667
US dollars e 42,894 -
73,885 8,667
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15 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits 15 RER\ASEEYREHENK

Group Company
A%E EIL
2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T

Cash at bank and on hand BOERRAE 93,519 129,580 9,831 340
Short-term bank deposits S HRITIER 291,888 286,266 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEY 385,407 415,846 9,831 340
Fixed deposits EHFR 6,810 - - -
392,217 415,846 9,831 340
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately REARITERERMNEZLNREF0.2/2(2009:
0.2% (2009: 0.3%) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity 03F) : ZEFXTFHEHEA17H (2009 :
of 17 days (2009: 37 days). 378) °
The effective interest rate on fixed deposits was approximately 2% EMFAREBRMELNRETF2E(2009 : &)
(2009: Nil) per annum; these deposits have an average maturity of ZEFHFHYREHA136H (2009 : ) o

136 days (2009: Nil).

Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits are denominated in the RehRBEFEYREHATERATINEEST]
following currencies: i :
Group Company
rEE b N
2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F 7T $'000 T 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T

Hong Kong dollars BT 37,648 20,137 9,813 340
Renminbi AR 74,598 102,212 - -
Us dollars e 275,069 291,904 - -
Other currencies Hith 5 ¥ 4,902 1,593 - -
392,217 415,846 9,813 340
At 31 March 2010, approximately HK$74,598,000 (2009: HK$102,212,000) 74201043 318 - 7 £ [ #74,598,0007% 7T
of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits were (2009 : 102,212,000 T ) 2 HE KR FE
denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency R ERGFFREAAREINER - i AREIL
in the international market and the repatriation of which is subject to FERTSERL R EE  HAHXF
foreign exchange control regulations of Mainland China. A3t SN B )V £ P PR 6 o
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16 Trade and other payables 16 BENERREMENKIE
As at 31 March 2010, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past 72010638318 @ IRaHB FIHZENE
due date is as follows: RZEREROWWAT
Group Company
r5H NS
2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T

Current B 73,177 49,291 - -
1 to 30 days 1HZE30H 16,031 7,112 - -
31 to 60 days 31THE60H 3,173 967 - -
61 to 90 days 61HZEIH 2,295 1,318 - -
Over 90 days 90HMIUE 2,110 1,415 - -
Trade payables FERER 96,786 60,103 - -
Accruals and other payables  E:tERKEEMH
e 7R 80,872 98,098 6,501 6,021
177,658 158,201 6,501 6,021
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables AEEzENERREMENFRIEAZREE
approximate their fair values. BEQFEREE -
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables balances AEE 2 EANER KM RN FRIAERZ
are denominated in the following currencies: EEZRATEESIK
Group Company
AE® b YN
2010 2009 2010 2009

$'000F T $'000T 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T

Hong Kong dollars BT 42,428 37,809 6,501 6,021
Renminbi AREE 122,570 111,173 - -
Us dollars ey 9,754 9,184 - -
Other currencies Hip B 2,906 35 = -

177,658 158,201 6,501 6,021
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17 Bank borrowings

At 31 March 2010, the bank borrowings are wholly secured by certain
of the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 6) and leasehold
land and land use rights (Note 8).

Bank borrowings bear interest rate approximately at 5.3% (2009:
5.3%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair
values. The bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi and repayable
within one year.

18 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority.

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as follows:

ETEEXRERARLT  2009/2010 F#H

17 SRITER

M2010F3A318 @ RITEREBHAEEE
Tz BELZE(KEe) BERAE LMK+
{5 A (M aE8) B -

RITERB KL AFES5.3E (2009 : 5.3F) °

RITERZEHERERAFERES - RITE
FTAARKETIE - AR —FABIH -

18 IELFREH

BEEFMEHERAEINERERZIEHN
%16.5% (2009 : 16.5% )5t & -

EEMSREERBABEERTHAEERR
TIHIBAEA A X 58 H AT EHEH
MERMEHER —HEMBEEREE - 71
EHREHE -

EXFREHAaBEzEeHmT

Group
rEH
2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T
At 1 April R4B1R (1,892) (1,118)
Deferred income tax credited/ R2EUZERTEN/
(charged) to statement of (T EEFMER
comprehensive income (Hizt26)
(Note 26) 760 (774)
At 31 March #3A31A (1,132) (1,892)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has no unrecognised deferred
tax losses (2009: Nil).

BEEMSHEERZATEBEBTERR -
I LA 35 3R 1% B B AR B0 I T AL 2 IR 2 AR RE AL
BHEAR AEBEWERERELTHEE
18(2009 : £#)
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18 BB (2)
FRBEFSH R E(RE—#BULE 2 &8

18 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities (prior to offsetting

of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are AT 2 B BT -
as follows:
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gain Others Total
MEREHRE NFEYE Hit @t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$'000F 7 $'000F7 $'000F;x $'000FL $'000Fm $'000F7T $'000F7m $'000FT
At 1 April R4A1H (1,664) (786) (200) (348) (28) 16 (1,892) (1,118)
Credited/(charged) to R 2 YRS
statement of B3/ (ZH)
comprehensive
income 593 (878) 167 148 - (44) 760 (774)
At 31 March #3A318 (1,0711)  (1,664) (33) (200) (28) 28) (1132  (1,892)
19 Share capital 19 B
2010 2009
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
R EE BRE{E RO HE SREE
'000FHR  $'000F T '000F % $'000F T
Authorised: ETE
— ordinary shares of — SRR EE0.108 T
HK$0.10 each 2 TRk 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EBETRER
— ordinary shares of —BREE0.10E T
HK$0.10 each 2 E A
Beginning of the year F9) 399,189 39,919 381,189 38,119
Exercise of share options FAITE AR
during the year 7,200 720 18,000 1,800
End of the year F IR 406,389 40,639 399,189 39,919
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20 Share options 20 fERRRE

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) under
which it could grant options to employees of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company. The subscription price was to be
determined by the Company’s board of directors, and would not be
less than the higher of the nominal value of the shares and 80% of the
average of the closing price of the shares quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the options.

Following the amendment of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, during the year ended 31 March 2003, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Existing Scheme”)
to replace the Old Scheme. However, all options granted prior to the
adoption of the Existing Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme. Under the Existing
Scheme, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party
having contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s board of
directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

AAmREBEAEAE([ERFE ) - Btk
ARAARAAEERE(BREANRANTE
E)REBEREARBARBRN - EHE T
SEBARAEHITRATEEID - RBE
HARREZTGER A FPERKROZE
EXZERHEREAPILAXZIEESR
BHARXZMARRA([BARM])MfHRF
BWRHEZ80%(AMEZRETERE) -

BRXATES EMAREE R AARREE
2003F3 AN B I FEHMNBERESS([RE
TEI DR ERE - HRAREEIRIE
B2 E BB RIEEE 2 G REE T
£ RIBFBAE - AQRARAARRAHE
FRHB AR AEERKE QA FEREY
REIZEMEERES (2B 21T
fAFHITESE)  EMERTES - FAKE
FREEFERENETFE  REAREEER
EHERZEMEMA LR BERENRE
KRR G - HEETERBRH T FBBARNAR A
T2 B ETRAEEZ30% °

PEEAAATNESEEE - LTGER
TEREZBES -

(@) BORBHUEBEBRIAETHARERANT
Pz W fE

(b) BOREBEERZHNEANAERS A EE
RS ARERMIZFHEDE &

(0 MfmEE -
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20 Share options (Continued) 20 BRHE (2
Movements of share options during the year ended 31 March 2010 HZE2010F3A3MB EFE 2 BREZ S W0
were: I
Lapsed/
Subscription Beginning Granted  Exercised  cancelled
price of the during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period per share year the year the year the year the year
FRAM/
REBH EME(e/A/F) BRIABE 59 £ARE  FrffR e R
HKS$ /5 T "000F & "000F & "000F & "000F & "000F &
0ld Scheme Eid
02/05/2000 02/05/2000 - 01/05/2010 1.287 10,800 - (7,200) - 3,600
02/05/2001 - 01/05/2010 1.287 (Note i) (H1#Ei) 125 - - (50) 75
10,925 - (7,200) (50) 3,675
Existing Scheme A&l
03/05/2004 03/05/2005 - 02/05/2014 1.00 (Note i)(H17ti) 50 - - - 50
03/05/2006 - 02/05/2014 1.00 (Note ii)(H17tii) 50 - - - 50
100 - - - 100
22/05/2007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1.98 (Note i)(fi7ti) 11,500 - - - 11,500
22/05/2009 - 21/05/2017 1.98 (Note ii)(f1#Lii) 400 - - (400) -
11,900 - - (400) 11,500
Notes: Mt 5
()  The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date () ZEEREERRLEBBHESZ —FHEEBEH
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

of grant.

The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date
of grant.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the weighted average closing price
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$1.66.

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which
the options were granted were as follows:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

1TfE

ZEBRBEARRHABES CcMFRE D
1%

HE2010F3A31HLFE - BROREEBR
TR BRI 2 TR ER1.668 T °

AR BB BB AR B B AT R
FrERBERIIGZKTENT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant RHEAH RERHERMZERKTE (Bx)
2 May 2000 200055826 1.72
3 May 2004 200445H83H 0.89
22 May 2007 200745AH22H 1.95

At 31 March 2010, outstanding options of 15,275,000 were exercisable.

Options exercised during the year were issued at the corresponding
subscription price.

(v)

(vi)

7201093 A31H © 15,275,0004% & A% #E ]
FATEE -

FREBTEZEREEREERBERT
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21 Other reserves 21 HibfEE
Group
L]
Property Share
Share revaluation Capital ~ Statutory Investment option Exchange
premium reserve  reserves (a) reserves (b) reserves reserves reserves Total

Rt NXEfEEE AxGEE AERBE) RERE BREGRE  ERRG #a
00T S000FT  S00FT  §000FT  §000FTm  S000FR S00FT 00T

At 1 April 2008 R200854 A1 64,086 2,108 1,59 6,999 - 9,231 44,316 128,334
Change in fair value AREENBEE
of available-for-sale JATEED
financial assets - - - - 116 - - 116
Currency translation Bz
differences - - - - - - 1175 1,175
Release of exchange FHE-HBRRAE
reserves upon iz ERGR
dissolution of
a subsidiary - - - - - - (6,286) (6,286)
Employee share EEERENE
option scheme:
- Value of -EERBZEE
employee
services - - - - - 1,100 - 1,100
- Proceeds from - iR
shares issued mETRH
upon exercise 2HEHE
of share options 18,266 - - - - - - 18,266
- Exercise of - {TibEmRE
share options 3,408 - - - - (3,408) - -
Capitalisation of E-MBRRER
statutory reserves BERREEN

and retained earnings BRERKESER
of a subsidiary as

paid-up capital - - 28,976 (4,433) - - - 24,543
Appropriation of EERBAR
statutory reserves - - - 3,528 - - - 3,528
At 31 March 2009 R2009%3A31A 85,760 2,108 30,570 6,094 116 6,923 45,805 177,376
Change in fair value of ARHENBEEL
available-for-sale ATERY
financial assets = = = = 352 - - 352
Currency translation ERER
differences - = = = = - 832 832
Employee share ERRRERE
option scheme:
- Value of -EERBZBE
employee
services - - = = = (207) = (207)
- Proceeds from -fiiEiReE
shares issued &R
upon exercise of FTEHE
share options 8,547 - - - - - - 8,547
Release of property HERANER
revaluation reserve upon R 2 MEER
disposal of investment 4
properties - (1,067) - - - - - (1,067)
Appropriation of EERBEAR
statutory reserves - - - 21 - = = 21
At 31 March 2010 #201083A318 94,307 1,041 30,570 6,321 468 6,716 46,637 186,060
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21 Other reserves (Continued) 21 HinfdE &)
Company
¥ N
Share
Share Contributed option

premium surplus (c) reserves Total

RDRE BHBER() BRERE wE

$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F 7T

At 1 April 2008 7A2008F4A81H 64,086 138,800 9,231 212,117

Employee share option scheme: 12 B8R #ETE] -

- Value of employee services —EERBZEE - - 1,100 1,100
- Proceeds from shares — (TR R T B 1T
issued upon exercise of f& 7 2 P13 318

share options 18,266 - - 18,266

— Exercise of share options — 1T AR 3,408 - (3,408) -

At 31 March 2009 7200963 A31H 85,760 138,800 6,923 231,483

Employee share option scheme: {EBEREETE :

— Value of employee services —EERBZEE = (207) (207)
— Proceeds from shares — 1T AR R 31T
issued upon exercise of &t 2 PriSsRIE

share options - - 8,547

At 31 March 2010 7201053 A31H 138,800 6,716 239,823
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Notes:

(a)

Capital reserves represent the difference between the nominal value of
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount
of the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the Group's reorganisation in March
2000 and certain amounts of statutory reserves and retained earnings of
a subsidiary capitalised as paid-up capital. In prior year, certain statutory
reserves and retained earnings were capitalised as paid up capital of a
subsidiary in Mainland China.

Statutory reserves represent general reserve fund required to be set up
pursuant to the laws of China for the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make up for losses
incurred, increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of
employees.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value
of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to the
Group's reorganisation in March 2000.

B et -

(a)

EAREEARRAMBETEBRZ @ERR
15200043 A 7 5= 6] 38 40 17 H A% i 4R B 2 Y
BABBAER DG ERNZZH UEk—
BB ARERNMERBRBRAEERFE X
REBBEMZETER - NEF —HRPE
B2 M8 A R 2 & T A S AR B 7
EERMERBRIA -

EERBEARBETREZARNEENTE
Nz B AR RN —RERES - — R
HEESETAEREER ZNETMEAR
HAEREB ZKBEA -

BEHAREARRMBETEBR 2 @ERR
15200043 A 7 5= 6] 38 40 3 17 H A% i 4R B 2 Y
BRABAEEZREZERE
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22 Revenue 22 KA
The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing AEEBFEXBRRT  HiE HERHEE
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic ERED BEGLREMEFERRFEEY
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year ¥ FAMRBZWALT :

are as follows:

2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F T
Sales of merchandise BmiHE 903,293 1,254,004
Rental income HEWA 158 283
Management fees BEEB 140 147
Handling income BIEUA 9,638 10,562
913,229 1,264,996
23 Other gains — net 23 Hfttlzs — F8
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Fair value (losses)/gains MTHEEHMIA
on derivative AFEGE) W
financial instruments (705) 4,775
Fair value gains on other BRATE
financial assets at T A & A A B 7
fair value through BEZATERE
profit or loss 2,259 140
Fair value gains/(losses) wEMEZ NTE
on investment properties Wz (EE) 150 (780)
Net losses on disposal of HEREMEZEBEFE
investment properties (117) -
Net (losses)/gains on HEWE  BEM&E
disposal of property, Z (B8, W38
plant and equipment (2,609) 46
Net gains/(losses) on HERAFERA
disposal of other financial BamEMVBEE
assets at fair value 2 W/ (E18) %58
through profit or loss 358 (432)
Net foreign exchange gains fE H a5 R 1,795 3,577
Net gain on dissolution of REE —B ARz W
a subsidiary FRE - 3,338
Provision for impairment loss 78 & £ i (B A5 B B
on leasehold land (1,057) -
74 10,664
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24 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging and crediting the following:

24 BERR

s M e MR RFFATIISIER

2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F T
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN S 1,156 1,130
Amortisation of leasehold FAE 1 Hb Ko A s FR A 2 2 8
land and land use rights 856 1,078
Cost of inventories SHEPA 730,643 1,013,063
Depreciation of property, M- BERREZITE
plant and equipment 40,971 46,031
Government grants BT 48 B (1,691) -
(Write-back of)/provision JEUNEFURE (B8, Bt
for impairment of trade
receivables (36) 2,048
Operating lease rental M2 EEROES
of premises 4,805 6,026
Staff costs (including ETBR(BEESEMSE)
directors’ emoluments) (K1z#30)
(Note 30) 200,174 263,534
25 Finance income and costs 25 BEWARKAE
2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F T
Interest income from REAT 2 HF B A
— available-for-sale — AR SRR EE
financial assets 253 73
- bank deposits —RITFER 1,147 5,196
— financial assets at fair —BATFEFABENIGEEE
value through profit
or loss 81 2,441
Finance income BEWA
— Interest income — M EWA 1,481 7,710
Finance costs & A (1,067) (3,440)
Net finance income BB WA FEE 414 4,270
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26 FIBHixX W

26 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2016.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT").

In the current year, two of the subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland
China are under the New and High Technology Enterprises status and
were entitled to preferential CIT rate of 15%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China qualify
for the grandfathering provisions and are eligible for certain tax
exemptions and concessions during the year. Accordingly, the CIT for
such subsidiaries has been provided for after taking into account of
these tax exemptions and concessions. For other subsidiaries in Mainland
China, provision of CIT were calculated based on the statutory tax rate
of 25% (2009: 25%) on the assessable income of each of the Group's
subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

APRalBBEAREMRE BHZE216F38
ALk e

EENESHBEERBEAREBELLR
BEB 2 barEREB R LA16.5% (2009 :
16.5%) Bt KT H o 785 B 5 B A b 2 T /&8
RAIBABRFECEMER([RRASEME
Fil) o

RER - REBER B B R B R
FAENASMMREERER XZAHTED
EFEHI5% 2 BEHREK -

AEEAETHERRRTEAMEEBR
FARABEMBRILEERZEE THE
RERER - Al ZEWMBRARIZHED
XMEHEdREENBERERERRE
e ZERPBEIA 2 EMmBAR - FEG
X¥BHRBENREAESBNBARSAZ
JERBIULA + H2EE T % 25% (2009 : 25%)

e zmBaRANKRORIBESEE

2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Current income tax =R e
— Hong Kong profits tax —HBMEH 7,451 10,252
- Mainland China corporate ~ — BN EFTEH
income tax 613 6,562
— Over-provision —FEEBRFIEE
in prior years (44) (1,815)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S L
Deferred income tax RIEFTISH
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNED (433) 774
— Over-provision —EEEBRFIEE
in prior years (327) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ey T
7,260 15,773
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26 Income tax expenses (Continued) 26 BB &)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the RNEBEKBR B AR R 2 FTE R EERA
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the AAMBRR 2B EFE EReBEZE5
home country of the Company as follows: A
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Profit before income tax ¥ P45 556 Al g A 62,254 113,914

Calculated at a taxation rate 1%X%{2%16.5%

of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (2009 : 16.5%)Ft & 10,272 18,796
Effect of different taxation AR A TR R 2 2
rates in Mainland China (481) (433)
Effect of change in taxation — FHEEE 7 &
rate - (63)
Income not subject AT 2 WA
to taxation (2,410) (3,693)
Expenses not deductible PR Mk 2 &
for taxation purpose 1,514 4,348
Over-provision in prior years  {E&E@FIE M (371) (1,815)
Others Hith (1,264) (1,367)
Income tax expenses Frisiisz i 7,260 15,773
There is no tax impact resulting to components of other comprehensive HZE2010F3A31HLLFE  EtpzElisE
income for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil). BB A IE R 2 (20094 : &) ©
27 Profit attributable to equity holders of the 27 AR FIREFEEAENESER
Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in #752,399,0007 7t (2009 : 59,600,000/8 1) 2
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately RAaEEREA AEAS NSt AKRR [ &
HK$52,399,000 (2009: HK$59,600,000). K o
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ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#H

28 Dividends 28 BRE
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Interim dividend of HERAR B AR B AR 3.0 Il
HK3.0 cents (2009 : 3.0 1L)
(2009: HK3.0 cents)
per ordinary share 11,976 11,976
Proposed final dividend of EEARE R T BRS.08 L
HK5.0 cents (2009 : 5.0 1L)
(2009: HK5.0 cents)
per ordinary share 20,502 19,959
Special interim dividend of BRIl HA R BB R AR 1.0
HK1.0 cent (2009 : 3.0 1L)
(2009: HK3.0 cents)
per ordinary share 3,992 11,976
Proposed special final BEFRRAREEREMAR3.0FN
dividend of HK3.0 cents (2009 : 4.0 (1)
(2009: HK4.0 cents)
per ordinary share 12,301 15,968
48,771 59,879

At a meeting held on 24 June 2010, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK5.0 cents and a special final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share amounting to a total of HK$32,803,000. The amount
is based on approximately 410,039,000 shares in issue as at 24 June
2010. The proposed dividends are not reflected as a dividend payable
in these financial statements.

201066 A24BER1T 2 €% L EFERBIK
PR EA R B 5 AR5.055 1L K 45 Bl R B IR B & iR
L@ R3.05 Wl - BB A £32,803,000% 7T °
% & %75 E 72201096 A24H #9410,039,000
BREBITROFTE - BMERETEEZEY
BHREFPIIEELRE -
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29 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

29 BRER

R

FBRERBRNTIAKRR B IRERH AR 4R
MERAFE AT BT E B R Z I F 19 B

s

ordinary shares in issue during the year. Hoe
2010 2009
Profit attributable to equity 57BN B4
holders of the Company BEAZRN (FA8T)
(HK$'000) 51,142 91,296
Weighted average number of 377 E@AL 2 HN4E
ordinary shares FHE (FR)
in issue ('000) 399,258 397,812
Basic earnings per share GRERZN GEW)
(HK cents) 12.8 22.9
Diluted B8

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options,
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual
market price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options.
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29 Earnings per share (continued) 29 BREF &)
Diluted (Continued) - S A=)
2010 2009
Profit attributable to equity  EREBANA FIIE
holders of the Company BEAZRMN (FET)
(HK$'000) 51,142 91,296
Weighted average number of B E/TLER 2
ordinary shares in issue mEEFEEE (TR
("'000) 399,258 397,812
Adjustment for potential BRI TR BB AR IE
dilutive effect in respect of  Z/BEEER E1(E
outstanding share options Hz AR (FKR)
("000) 1,959 1,192
Weighted average number of stE &R EEF)
ordinary shares used in RrER A 2 i e
calculating diluted earnings  F¥H& (Fi%)
per share ('000) 401,217 399,004
Diluted earnings per REERR &)
share (HK cents) 12.7 22.9

emoluments)

30 Employee benefit expense (including directors’

30 EERAH (BREEEHE)

2010 2009

$'000F T $'000F 7T

Wages and salaries TERES 188,246 236,001

Other staff benefits Hith 8 THE7 8,209 15,085
Pension costs — defined RkeS i —E8

contribution plans HRETE

(Note 33) (H7533) 3,926 11,348
Value of employee share EERRECZEE

options (207) 1,100

200,174 263,534
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30 Employee benefit expense (including directors’

94

emoluments) (Continued)

(a) Directors and senior management’s emoluments

30 EERAZH(BRESHE) (2)

(a) EEREREEEMNE

Pension
costs
Discretionary and share
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses options Total
‘ B2 %Y
EEps e e BETA RERE wa
$'000F7 $'000F7T $'000FT §000FT  $'000F T
For the year ended BZE201063A318L
31 March 2010 B
Executive Directors BTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny BSE 200 1,431 1,124 18 2,173
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 200 1,394 1,124 9 2,721
Chow Man Yan, Michael Ehg 200 1,394 1,124 21 2,739
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT 150 865 579 21 1,615
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B 150 865 579 21 1,615
Chow Lai Fung BEE 150 844 579 21 1,594
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Chang Chu Cheng SRAK 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen BHEE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun TR 200 - - - 200
For the year ended BZ2009F3A311L
31 March 2009 £E
Executive Directors HIESE
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny o 200 1,499 1,127 321 3,147
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon DIk 200 1,460 1,127 309 3,096
Chow Man Yan, Michael [Ehym 200 1,460 1,127 321 3,108
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT 150 906 580 54 1,690
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B 150 906 580 21 1,657
Chow Lai Fung EEE 150 884 580 21 1,635
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Chang Chu Cheng SR B 200 - - - 200
Che Wai Hang, Allen HiEfE 200 - - - 200
Lee Yiu Pun FIRRE 200 - - - 200

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals are directors whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year and last year whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.

(b) EEREHAL

FAREFAKERRFLBALIRE
£ REZHMEERLERZIZOMR

i o
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHBEI -

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash inflow generated

it
Hﬂﬁl}

i

31 REBRERERMET

FRERERAE

2009/2010

(a) AFEHEMNELZEH RS RAFHE

from operations: ZHER
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Profit for the year N A 54,994 98,141
Adjustments for: AT EIBIELHFARE -
— Amortisation of —MHE T R A
leasehold land and 37
land use rights 856 1,078
— Depreciation of property, —ME - BELREHIFE
plant and equipment 40,971 46,031
— Finance costs —BE KA 1,067 3,440
— Finance income —mEKA (1,481) (7,710)
— Income tax expenses — P R 7,260 15,773
— Fair value losses/ —{TESmMIEA
(gains) on derivative RNTFEEIE(KE)
financial instruments 705 (4,775)
— Fair value gains on —RBRAFEFAER
other financial assets MEMMBEERTE
at fair value through W &
profit or loss (2,259) (140)
— Fair value (gains)/losses —REWERNTFE
on investment W),/ K8
properties (150) 780
— Net losses on disposal —HEREMEZBEFHE
of investment properties 117 -
— Net losses/(gains) on —HEME - WEREE
disposal of property, ZIEE (W) FeE
plant and equipment 2,609 (46)
— Net (gains)/losses on —HERAFEFAEBR
disposal of other E’Jﬁﬁﬂmﬁ%ﬁfz
financial assets at =),/ B E
fair value
through profit or loss (358) 432
— Provision for impairment —HE T MR AEBERE
loss on leasehold land 1,057 -
- Value of employee - EEBEREZEER
share options (207) 1,100
105,181 154,104
Changes in working LEEASEH
capital:
— Inventories -FE (602) 59,462
— Trade receivables *FEH&ZE?K 1,943 30,846
— Other receivables Hoth JE Y IE (6,936) 12,377
— Trade payables *Féﬁ”bm 36,683 (79,833)
- Accruals and other —JEET B R K E A E T k18
payables (17,226) (8,308)
— Deferred income —IREWA 1,986 -
Cash generated from KEFHEELEZRE
operations 121,029 168,648
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31 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (Continued)

31 R BRERERMT (&)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year: (b) FARMEZB DI :
Share capital and
share premium Bank loans
R R G EE RITER
2010 2009 2010 2009
$'000F 7T $'000F 7T $'000F T $'000F 7T
At 1 April m4B18 125,679 102,205 16,988 33,601
Issue of shares upon EATE R M
exercise of share BITRD
options ) 9,267 20,066 - -
New bank loans MIBRITE R - - 26,077 59,595
Repayment of bank loans {EiER1TE & - - (17,007) (76,376)
Exchange differences FE N =% - - 49 168
Employee share B EBEAELE
option scheme:
— value of employee —EERKEZEE
share options - 3,408 - -
At 31 March M3A31H 134,946 125,679 26,107 16,988
32 Commitments 32 &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital AEBZERERDATHNEREKE
commitments: LU
2010 2009
$'000F T $'000F 7T
Acquisition of machinery B8 B 4% & 22 51
and equipment 1,231 6,738
Construction of factory BEEBEWE
premises - 2,816
1,231 9,554

(b) Commitments under operating leases

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
various non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b) HWERNEARE

AEEREZAENARR 2 EZHON
ARENREHESBRBEMNT

2010 2009

$'000F 5T $'000F 7T

Not later than one year K14 2,970 4,270
Later than one year and #8815 {2 T iBE5F

not later than five years 2,575 1,572

5,545 5,842

96



Notes to the Financial Statements

Sk 5 it o B

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEHBEI -

33

34

PR e D

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed
by independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’'s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of the
Group's employer contributions to the MPF Scheme was approximately
HK$947,000 (2009: HK$507,000).

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute up to 22% of their basic
salaries, while the Group contributes to retirement plans approximately
at 11% to 13% of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland
China, and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. During the year, approximately HK$2,979,000 (2009:
HK$10,841,000) was paid/payable by Mainland China subsidiaries with
respect to such retirement plans.

Financial guarantee

At 31 March 2010, the Company had provided guarantees in respect
of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$155,700,000 (2009: HK$198,029,000). The facilities utilised by
the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 amounted to HK$26,107,000 (2009:
HK$16,988,000).

33

34

ETEEXEERARLT  2009/2010 F#H

RUKEEME

AEELZHBESRERELEB BB IUETA
EREREERARFELATEESTE([RES
TE])  HEe v EEHASEEMEEDH
BE THBYUEEESKEETE - RE®R
Beitdl A"EEREMEREEANBES
FOFTEREZEEH 5% T AELHK - B
EREEHRZ ERHAEST HA1,0008 T« 78
A B FEEESMILRR o

HZE2010F3831BHIEFE  A5EEEHERS
STEEE 2B EH A A £4 5947,00008 7T
(2009 : 507,000 7T) ©

BEFREAGERERERATE  AEEBAE
FE R R 8 kB R & B) 2 R IRET S E
HH - BEAREEAFT ST Z202%EDH
o MAKEBEAARBRKTEEFLHE T BEE
BEXRFEONM%E13% 250 - MBEEET
AERERAKRE T HERKEF BIHEELT
fRAEE - RREEZHARKS X H A E
REZBRRFTEAE - FR - PERMZ
MEBARBEZRASTEEN LA
2,979,0005% 7T (2009 : 10,841,00058 7T ) °

Bt B R R

201038318 - AR AEKB AR LR
TZREERER - ©£%84/4155,700,0007%5 7T
(2009 : 198,029,000/ 7T) © [f1/E@ A F11420104F3
A31BE & A Z @& 426,107,000 7T (2009 :
16,988,000/ 7T ) ©
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35

98

Related party transactions

The ultimate parent of the Group is Acoustic Touch Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands).

(a)

(b)

The following significant transactions were carried out with related
parties:

35 AEALEIRS

Acoustic Touch Limited (7% & B & £ & =t fff
) BAEE 2 &KEETRF] -

(a) AEBBEBEALZERRSMT :

Name of related party/Nature of transaction 2010 2009
BMEATZER XBNHE $'000F T $'000F 7T
The Bright Printing Press St BA AT = BN 75 4 on R
and Paper Products BIRAA ()
Limited (i)
— Purchases of —mMASEBEE®
merchandise from
the Group 971 1,986
— Sales of merchandise —-MAKBEHEEER
to the Group 2,308 2,981
First Success Technology HEREERRE (i)
Limited (ii)
— Rental expense paid/ —-AR&EEE EAffzEE
payable by
the Group 791 695
— Management fees —MAEEMN ENZEREER
paid/payable to
the Group 120 120

Notes

(i)  The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products Limited is 3% owned
by an unrelated party. The remaining 97% is beneficially owned by
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow
Man Yan, Michael, directors of the Company.

(ii)  First Success Technology Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung
Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan,
Michael, directors of the Company.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above related party
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company’s executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.

(i)  StBAM = EN A AR GRS PR A A B R
ATHEB3I%KRAE - HR7T%REHRARD
RIESGEHERE FMALERREAX
ChREERMS -

(i) HEREARAFDBARADEFISER
TE - RMALERAXCEEELGHE
5o

RARRIEERR LMBEALRST)

RAEE—REBHET TRETH
TE Z GRFETT ©

(b) TEEEEZHM

TE2EEABRARRBITES - 2
EIEAB ZH RIS AR 30 -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chang Chu Cheng
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chang Chu Cheng

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

16th Floor, Tower |

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

ELSEXERAERAE

EEg

BITES

BEELEE(XE)

R AR ST A (B B )
A=t (B EEEE)
RFEEE

BIREE

FAERLZ L

BAFHTES

SRAE A
BEREELE

BEREES

FREELE(EE)
SRAE A 18 £
BERELE

FMEES
BREELE(ER)
AL+
AR S

BT B

REWE

AERZ L

HMRER
Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

BPMEERTELEXEME

BB R

D HESEE 1385
TP RS
F1PE1612

2009/2010 R

99



Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2009/2010

Corporate Information

2 B K

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARANDTRANSFER B R ETFTERNVBFETE
OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd. Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd.
Argyle House Argyle House

41A Cedar Avenue 41A Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12 Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND EEBRMONWBFEITIE
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited BEBFELARAA
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor BEEFRERERER183%
Hopewell Centre AFIFRLT7H81712-17169% 48

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR ¥ By B
PricewaterhouseCoopers #EEF KB TR EEA
Certified Public Accountants BEBNEEFTRD

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building BERIR

Central, Hong Kong RKFRE2E
SOLICITORS =Em

Chiu & Partners AR HSESREAEGSA
40th Floor, Jardine House BB REES 1R

1 Connaught Place 18RI R E4088

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEARRT
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITIRIT(EE)BR AT
Hang Seng Bank Limited BERITAR DA
PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT AHEBRER
Strategic Financial Relations Limited B N EBEE AR A A
Unit A, 29/F.,, Admiralty Centre | BECEERBISH

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong BEROE—EIEAE
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited
ELBSEXERERLE

16/F, Tower |, Grand Central Plaza,

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road,

Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong

BRI ABEE R38BT T RESE — 1612
Tel 5 : (852) 2605 5008

Fax f&H : (852) 2694 1338

E-mail E : info @fujikon.com

Web-site #331t : http://www.fujikon.com
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